
0490.0008; 1300649 
Agendas are posted to the District’s website at http://www.wheatlandsmetro.org 

WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING 

Wheatlands Clubhouse, 6601 S. Wheatlands Parkway, Aurora, Colorado 
March 9, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
www.wheatlandsmetro.org 

Paulette Martin, President   Term to May 2023 
Kathy Barela, Treasurer Term to May 2025 
Rodney DeWalt, Assistant Secretary Term to May 2023 
Sameer Bhatnagar, Assistant Treasurer  Term to May 2023 
Brooke Holliman, Secretary   Term to May 2025 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Declaration of Quorum/ Conflict of Interest Disclosures

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Public Comment – Members of the public may express their views to the Board on matters that 
affect the District.  Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person.  As a general practice, 
the Board will not discuss/debate these items, nor will the Board make any decisions on items 
presented during this time, rather it will refer the items for follow up.

5. Consent Agenda – The items listed below are a group of items to be approved with a single motion 
and vote by the Board. An item may be removed from the consent agenda to the regular agenda 
upon request of any Board member.
a. Approval of Minutes from February 9, 2023 Regular Meeting
b. Ratify Independent Contractor Agreement with Courtesy Plumbing & Heating for Water 

Heater Replacement in the amount of $28,643.00
c. Ratify First Amendment to Independent Contractor Agreement with YMCA for District 

Management Services and Clubhouse Management & Programming
d. Ratify First Amendment to Independent Contractor Agreement with YMCA for Pool 

Maintenance and Staffing
e. Ratify First Amendment to Independent Contractor Agreement with Apex Plumbing for 

Water Meter Installation Services
f. Ratify Independent Contractor Agreement with Saquimux Services, LLC for Clubhouse 

Cleaning Services
g. Ratify First Amendment to Independent Contractor Agreement with LEO Renovations, 

LLC for Clubhouse Remodel Services
h.

6. Covenant Enforcement/Design Review
a. Review Architectural Review and Covenant Enforcement Reports

7. Financial Matters
a. Review Unaudited Financial Statements and Approve Payment of Claims
b. Other Financial Matters

8. Landscape Maintenance
a. Review Landscape Maintenance Report and Status of Approved Work Orders

1

Consider Approval of Pay Application No. 10

http://www.wheatlandsmetro.org/
http://www.wheatlandsmetro.org/


0490.0008; 1300649 
Agendas are posted to the District’s website at http://www.wheatlandsmetro.org  

b. Review and Consider Approval of Work Orders/Proposals   
c. Other Landscape Maintenance Matters 

9. Legal Matters 
a. Update on May Director’s Election 
b. Other Legal Matters 

10. District Management 
a. Review District Manager’s Report    
b. Other Management Items 

11. Capital Projects 
a. Update on Kitchen and Bathroom Remodel 
b. Urban Soccer Fields Update 

12. Director’s Items 
a. Wheatlands Park and Recreation Authority Update 
b. Review and Discuss Board Emails Received (board@wheatlandsmetro.org)    
c. Other Director Items 

 
13. Other Business   

14. Adjourn 

 

 
 
 
 
 

2023 Regular Meetings Location 
Second Thursday of each month @ 6:00 p.m. Wheatlands Clubhouse, 6601 S. Wheatlands Parkway, 

Aurora, Colorado 

2

http://www.wheatlandsmetro.org/
mailto:board@wheatlandsmetro.org


  
0490.0006; 1301783 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS  
 
OF 

 
WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT  
 
Held: February 9, 2023 at 6:00 p.m., at 6601 S. Wheatlands 
Parkway, Aurora, CO. 

 
Attendance   A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Wheatlands 

Metropolitan District was called and held as shown above and in 
accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of Colorado.  
The following Directors, having confirmed their qualification to 
serve, were in attendance: 
 

 Paulette Martin 
Kathy Barela 
Rodney DeWalt 
Sameer Bhatnagar 
Brooke Holliman  

 
 Also present were: Clint C. Waldron, Esq., White Bear Ankele 

Tanaka & Waldron, District General Counsel; James Shultz, 
Marchetti and Weaver, District Accountant; Sharon Sulzle (for a 
portion of the meeting), AMI HOA; and Isabell Rodau, YMCA, 
District Manager, and  Kimberly Armitage, YMCA.  
 

Call to Order It was noted that a quorum of the Board was present, and the 
meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Disclosure Matters 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Mr. Waldron reported that disclosures for those directors that 
provided White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron with notice of 
potential or existing conflicts of interest were filed with the 
Secretary of State’s Office and the Board at least 72 hours prior 
to the meeting, in accordance with Colorado law, and those 
disclosures were acknowledged by the Board. Mr. Waldron 
inquired into whether members of the Board had any additional 
disclosures of potential or existing conflicts of interest with 
regard to any matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. No 
additional disclosures were noted. The participation of the 
members present was necessary to obtain a quorum or to 
otherwise enable the Board to act. 
 

3



2 
0490.0006; 1301783 

Agenda The Board reviewed the proposed agenda. Following discussion, 
upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously 
approved the agenda, as amended.  
 

Public Comment  None. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
 

The Board reviewed the items on the consent agenda. Mr. 
Waldron advised the Board that an item may be removed from 
the consent agenda to the regular agenda upon the request of any 
director. Upon motion duly made and seconded, the following 
items on the consent agenda were unanimously approved, 
ratified and adopted: 
 

a. Minutes from January 12, 2023 Regular Meeting; and  
b. Proposal for Unit Heater Replacement. 

 
Covenant 
Enforcement/Design 
Review 
 
Review Architectural Review 
and Covenant Enforcement 
Reports 
 

 
 
 
 
Ms. Sulzle reviewed the executive summary with the Board 
noting there are currently 66 open violations and there were nine 
new design review requests. The Board asked that information 
on the City’s drought-tolerant waterwise landscaping rebate 
program be included in the next newsletter. Ms. Suzle also noted 
the tree list had been updated by Mr. Howey. The list and 
changes to the guidelines will be included in the next meeting 
packet. The Board discussed the damage to the trees that were 
topped. The Board requested Ms. Rodau file a police report and 
pursue restitution for the damage. 

 
Financial Matters 
 
Review Unaudited Financial 
Statements and Approve 
Payment of Claims 
 
 
 
Public Hearing on 2022 
Budget Amendment 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Mr. Shultz reviewed the November 30, 2022 Unaudited 
Financial Statements and the accounts payable list with the 
Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and 
seconded, the Board unanimously approved the accounts 
payable. 
 
Director Martin opened the public hearing on the 2022 Budget 
Amendment. Mr. Waldron noted that the notice of public hearing 
was provided in accordance with Colorado Law. No written 
objections have been received prior to the meeting. There being 
no public comment, the hearing was closed. 
 

4



3 
0490.0006; 1301783 

Consider Adoption of 
Resolution Amending 2022 
Budget 
 
 
 
Other Financial Matters 
 
Landscape Maintenance  
 

Mr. Shultz reviewed the Resolution Amending the 2022 Budget 
with the Board.  Following discussion, upon a motion duly made 
and seconded, the Board unanimously adopted the resolution 
amending the General Fund to $4,189,274 and the Park Fund to 
$4,611,048. 
 
None. 
 

Review Landscape 
Maintenance Report and 
Status of Approved Work 
Orders 
 
Review and Consider 
Approval of Work 
Orders/Proposals 

Mr. Cox reviewed the Landscape Maintenance Report with the 
Board. He noted he is still waiting on the freeze damage repairs 
to the park bathroom and the bathroom is closed until the repairs 
are complete. 
 
The Board reviewed Estimate #1727 for the purchase of three 
large pots to be purchased and installed by the air conditioning 
unit. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and 
seconded, the Board unanimously approved Estimate #1727 in 
the amount of $4,417.  

 
Other Landscape 
Maintenance Matters 
 

 
None. 
 
 

Legal Matters 
 
Consider Approval of 
Independent Contractor 
Agreement with Cox 
Professional Landscape 
Services LLC for 2023-2024 
Landscape Maintenance 
Services 
 
Oil and Gas Lease Follow Up 
 
 
 
 
Other Legal Matters 
 

 
 
Mr. Waldron reviewed the Independent Contractor Agreement 
with Cox Professional Landscape Services LLC for 2023-2024 
Landscape Maintenance Services with the Board. Following 
discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Board 
unanimously approved the agreement. 
 
 
 
The Board discussed the status of the proposed oil and gas lease 
and determined to postpone any discussion until a later date. The 
Board would like to continue to provide the residents information 
about the proposed drilling as it is received. 
 
None. 
 

District Management 
 
Review District Manager’s 
Report 
 

 
 
Ms. Rodau reviewed the District Manager’s Report with the 
Board. 
 

5



4 
0490.0006; 1301783 

Discussion Regarding 
Preventative Maintenance on 
Heaters 
 

The Board reviewed the proposal from Pool Doctor for 
preventative maintenance on the pool heaters. Following 
discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Board 
unanimously approved the Pool Doctor proposal. 

 
Discussion Regarding VGB 
Drain 
 
 
 
Discussion Regarding Water 
Heater Replacement  
 
 
 
Discussion Regarding Pots 
Around the Bench and Air 
Conditioning Fence 
 
Other Management Items 
 

 
The Board reviewed the proposal for the replacement of the VGB 
drain. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and 
seconded, the Board unanimously approved the VGB drain 
proposal.  
 
The Board reviewed the proposal for the water heater 
replacement. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made 
and seconded, the Board unanimously approved the water heater 
replacement not to exceed $29,970.  Ms. Rodau will solicit 
additional proposals. 
 
The Board addressed this matter while discussing Landscape 
Matters.  
 
 
None. 
 

Capital Projects 
 

 

Update on Kitchen and 
Bathroom Remodel 
 

Ms. Rodau provided an update on the kitchen and bathroom 
remodel to the Board.  

Wheatlands Park Phase II – 
Discuss Grand Opening 
 

The Board reviewed the update from Architerra. It was noted the 
shelter was finished on February 3, 2023, the final inspection 
took place February 8, 2023 and the inspection on the shelter will 
happen today, February 9, 2023. The contractor notified the 
masons at the beginning of the week and they should be out there 
in the next couple of weeks. Once the masons are finished, the 
crusher fines will be touched up and the fence will be removed. 
 

Urban Soccer Fields 
 

 

Update on Site Work 
 

 

The Board reviewed Amendment No. 1 to the Elevation 
Consulting Contract. Following discussion, upon a motion duly 
made and seconded, the Board unanimously approved the 
amendment. 
  

Discussion Regarding 
Urban Soccer Field 
Subcommittee  
 

Ms. Barela noted the subcommittee is recommending all revenue 
from the fields should go to the Wheatlands Park and Recreation 
Authority. 
 

Director’s Items  

6



5 
0490.0006; 1301783 

 
Wheatlands Park and 
Recreation Authority Update 
 

Ms. Armitage addressed questions from the Board on the 
program and membership report. She noted that the repairs from 
the pipe freezing should begin next week. The Board inquired 
about any meetings with the bank, and Ms. Armitage responded 
there have not been any meetings with the bank. The Board also 
asked about increasing the popular programming. Ms. Barela 
asked about the website links and required updates. Ms. 
Armitage noted that they have new software that should fix the 
issues they’ve had with the website. 
 

Review and Discuss Board 
Emails Received 
(board@wheatlandsmetro.or
g) 
 

None. 

Other Director Items 
 

None.  
 

Other Business 
 

None. 

Adjourn There being no further business to come before the Board, upon 
motion, second and unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes 
of the above-referenced meeting. 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Secretary for the Meeting 
 
The foregoing minutes were approved the 9th day of March, 
2023. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7



6 
0490.0006; 1301783 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  

8



0490.4200, 1297857 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT SERVICES) 

      
 

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits 
attached hereto (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of the 9th day of February 2023, by and 
between WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and AFFORDABLE SERVICES 
CORP. d/b/a COURTESY PLUMBING & HEATING, a Colorado corporation (the 
“Contractor”).  The District and the Contractor are referred to herein individually as a “Party” 
and collectively as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions 
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. for the purpose of constructing, financing, operating, and 
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its taxpayers, residents, and users; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is empowered to enter 
into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(i), C.R.S., the District is empowered to appoint, 
hire, and retain agents, employees, engineers, and attorneys; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain services as are 
needed by the District to serve the property within and without its boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented that it has the professional experience, skill, 
and resources to perform the services, as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth 
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES; PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  The Contractor shall 
perform the services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Services”): (a) in a professional manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using 
the degree of skill and knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar 
services; (b) within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in said Exhibit 
A; and (c) using reasonable commercial efforts to minimize any annoyance, interference, or 
disruption to the residents, tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District.  Exhibit A may 
take any form, including forms which may include price and payment terms.  In the event of any 
conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, 
the terms in the body of this Agreement shall govern.  Contractor shall have no right or authority, 
express or implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate 

9



0490.4200, 1297857 2

the District in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this Agreement 
(including Exhibit A) or through other authorization expressly delegated to or authorized by the 
District through its Board of Directors. 

2. TERM/RENEWAL.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the dated date hereof 
and shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) termination pursuant to Section 18 hereof; or (ii) 
December 31, 2023.   

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  The District may, in writing, request the Contractor 
provide additional services not set forth in Exhibit A.  The terms and conditions of the provision 
of such services shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Contractor and the District pursuant 
to a written service/work order executed by an authorized representative of the District and the 
Contractor or an addendum to this Agreement.  Authorization to proceed with additional services 
shall not be given unless the District has appropriated funds sufficient to cover the additional 
compensable amount.  To the extent additional services are provided pursuant to this Section 3, 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement relating to Services shall also apply to any additional 
services rendered. 

4. REPAIRS/CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any 
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties.  The 
Contractor will promptly repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of 
any damage to property caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents, or equipment.  In 
addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims of which it 
becomes aware.  The Contractor further agrees to take all reasonable steps to preserve all physical 
evidence and information, which may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a potential 
claim, while maintaining public safety, and to grant to the District the opportunity to review and 
inspect such evidence, including the scene of any damage or accidents.  The Contractor shall be 
responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the Services and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage or 
injury to persons and property, including any material and equipment related to the Services, 
whether in storage on or off site, under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors. 

5. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 

a. The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and 
location of the Services; (ii) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be 
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment, and facilities 
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services; 
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the 
Contractor.  Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such 
examination and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision 
thereof made to it by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement.  
The Contractor represents that it has or shall acquire the capacity and the professional experience 
and skill to perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the 
standards of care, skill, and diligence provided by competent professionals who perform services 
of a similar nature to those specified in this Agreement.  If competent professionals find that the 

10



0490.4200, 1297857 3

Contractor’s performance of the Services does not meet this standard, the Contractor shall, at the 
District’s request, re-perform the Services not meeting this standard without additional 
compensation.   

b. The Contractor shall use reasonable commercial efforts to perform and 
complete the Services in a timely manner.  If performance of the Services by the Contractor is 
delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, or if conditions of the scope or 
type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give prompt notice to the District of such 
a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or compensation, as negotiated 
between the Parties. 

c. The Services provided under this Agreement shall be adequate and 
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner.  

d. The Contractor agrees that it has complied and will continue to comply with 
all Laws while providing Services under this Agreement.  “Laws” means: (i) federal, state, county, 
and local or municipal body or agency laws, statutes, ordinances, and regulations; (ii) any 
licensing, bonding, and permit requirements; (iii) any laws relating to storage, use, or disposal of 
hazardous wastes, substances, or materials; (iv) rules, regulations, ordinances, and/or similar 
directives regarding business permits, certificates, and licenses; (v) regulations and orders 
affecting safety and health, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 
1970; (vi) Wage and Hour laws, Worker Compensation laws, and immigration laws.    

e. The responsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement 
shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent, consultant, sub-
consultant, or employee of the District.  Review, acceptance, or approval by the District of the 
Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor 
of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions, or errors in said Services or documents, nor shall 
it be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement. 

6. MONTHLY STATUS REPORT.  The Contractor shall provide to the District, at 
the District’s request, on or before the 25th of each month, a narrative progress and status report 
describing work in progress and results achieved during the reporting period, including a 
description of the Services performed during the invoice period and the Services anticipated to be 
performed during the ensuing invoice period (“Monthly Report”).  

7. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES. 

a. Compensation.  Compensation for the Services provided under this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement 
and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided in Exhibit A 
of this Agreement, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved in writing by the 
District in advance of incurring such expenses.  Any direct reimbursable costs for materials will 
be reimbursable at the Contractor’s actual cost, provided that the Contractor shall make a 
reasonable attempt to notify the District of the estimated amount of such reimbursable costs (or 

11



0490.4200, 1297857 4

any material adjustments thereto subsequently identified) prior to commencing the requested 
services.  Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 
District with a current completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification) (“W-9”).  No payments will be made to the Contractor 
until the completed W-9 is provided.  The W-9 shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit B. 

b. Invoices.  Invoices for the Services shall be submitted monthly, by the 10th 
of each month, during the term of this Agreement and shall contain the following information: 

i. An itemized statement of the Services performed. 

ii. Any other reasonable information required by the District to process 
payment of the invoice, including project and/or cost codes as provided in any applicable written 
service/work order. 

The District shall be charged only for the actual time and direct costs 
incurred for the performance of the Services.  Invoices received by the District after the 10th of 
each month may be processed the following month. 

8. TIME FOR PAYMENT.  Payment for the Services shall be made by the District 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of: (i) a timely, satisfactory, and detailed invoice in the form 
required by Section 7; and (ii) if applicable, a reasonably satisfactory and detailed Monthly Report, 
for that portion of the Services performed and not previously billed.  The District may determine 
to waive or extend the deadline for filing the Monthly Report, or may make payment for Services 
to the Contractor notwithstanding a delay in filing the Monthly Report, upon reasonable request 
of the Contractor, if it is in the interest of the District to do so.  In the event a Board meeting is not 
scheduled in time to review payment of an invoice, the Board hereby authorizes payment for 
Services, subject to the appropriation and budget requirements under Section 27 hereof, without 
the need for additional Board approval, so long as any payment required to be made does not 
exceed the amounts appropriated for such Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget.  
Such payment shall require review and approval of each Monthly Report and invoice by two 
officers of the District. 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor is an independent contractor 
and nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees 
or agents as employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor shall have full power and authority 
to select the means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without 
detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own 
employees or subcontractors.  The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained.  The 
District shall not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or 
employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, 
contractors, agents, or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to: 
local, state or federal income, or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes), 
workers’ compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance, 
errors and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions, 
or any other form of taxes, benefits, or insurance.  The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety, 

12



0490.4200, 1297857 5

and the safety of its employees, sub-contractors, agents, and representatives.  All personnel 
furnished by the Contractor will be deemed employees or sub-contractors of the Contractor and 
will not for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor is 
not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits, unless 
unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Contractor or some other entity 
other than the District, and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income taxes 
on moneys by it earned pursuant to this Agreement.   

10. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY.  This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws and 
executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-discrimination in employment and the 
Contractor represents and warrants that it will not discriminate in its employment practices in 
violation of any such applicable law or executive order. 

11. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE.   

a. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, 
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth in 
Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  A waiver of subrogation and 
rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents is required for 
Commercial General Liability and workers’ compensation coverage.  The Commercial General 
Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name 
the District as an additional insured.  All coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to any coverage that the 
District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess.  The 
District shall have the right to verify or confirm, at any time, all coverage, information, or 
representations contained in this Agreement. 

b. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
provide the District with a certificate or certificates evidencing the policies required by this 
Agreement, as well as the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage, which 
certificate(s) shall be attached hereto as Exhibit C-1.  If the Contractor subcontracts any portion(s) 
of the Services, said subcontractor(s) shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing statutory 
workers’ compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance, and automobile 
liability insurance in amounts satisfactory to the District and the Contractor; provided, however, 
that sub-contractors of the Contractor shall not be required by the District to provide coverage in 
excess of that which is required hereunder of the Contractor.  If the coverage required expires 
during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide replacement 
certificate(s) evidencing the continuation of the required policies. 

c. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve 
to release it from any obligations contained in this Agreement, nor shall the purchase of the 
required insurance serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision in this Agreement.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies. 

  

13



0490.4200, 1297857 6

12. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICTS.  

a. Confidentiality.  Any information deemed confidential by the District and 
given to the Contractor by the District, or developed by the Contractor as a result of the 
performance of a particular task, shall remain confidential.  In addition, the Contractor shall hold 
in strict confidence, and shall not use in competition, any information which the Contractor 
becomes aware of under or by virtue of this Agreement which the District deems confidential, or 
which the District has agreed to hold confidential, or which, if revealed to a third party, would 
reasonably be construed to be contrary to the interests of the District.  Confidential information 
shall not include, however, any information which is: (i) generally known to the public at the time 
provided to the Contractor; (ii) provided to the Contractor by a person or entity not bound by 
confidentiality to the District; or (iii) independently developed by the Contractor without use of 
the District’s confidential information.  During the performance of this Agreement, if the 
Contractor is notified that certain information is to be considered confidential, the Contractor 
agrees to enter into a confidentiality agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to the District and 
the Contractor.  The Contractor agrees that any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors with 
access to any information designated thereunder as confidential information of the District shall 
agree to be bound by the terms of such confidentiality agreement. 

b. Personal Identifying Information.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the District may disclose Personal Identifying Information to the Contractor.  
“Personal Identifying Information” means a social security number; a personal identification 
number; a password; a pass code; an official state or government-issued driver’s license or 
identification card number; a government passport number; biometric data, as defined in § 24-73-
103(1)(a), C.R.S.; an employer, student, or military identification number; or a financial 
transaction device, as defined in § 18-5-701(3), C.R.S.  In compliance with § 24-73-102, C.R.S., 
the Contractor agrees to implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices that 
are: (i) appropriate to the nature of the Personal Identifying Information disclosed to the 
Contractor; and (ii) reasonably designed to help protect the Personal Identifying Information from 
unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. 

c. Conflicts.  Prior to the execution of, and during the performance of this 
Agreement and prior to the execution of future agreements with the District, the Contractor agrees 
to notify the District of conflicts known to the Contractor that impact the Contractor’s provision 
of Services to the District.   

13. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all maps, plans, 
drawings, specifications, reports, electronic files, and other documents, in whatever form, shall 
remain the property of the District under all circumstances, upon payment to the Contractor of the 
invoices representing the work by which such materials were produced.  At the District’s request 
the Contractor will provide the District with all documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall maintain electronic and reproducible 
copies on file of any such instruments of service involved in the Services for a period of two (2) 
years after termination of this Agreement, shall make them available for the District’s use and shall 
provide such copies to the District upon request at no cost. 

14



0490.4200, 1297857 7

14. LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES.  The Contractor shall not have any right or 
interest in any District assets, or any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this 
Agreement or the performance of the Services contemplated in this Agreement.  The Contractor, 
for itself, hereby waives and releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s, 
materialmen’s, or other such lien claims, or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or 
any improvements thereon in connection with any Services performed under or in connection with 
this Agreement, and the Contractor shall cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers, 
materialmen, and others claiming by, through, or under the Contractor to execute similar waivers 
prior to commencing any work or providing any materials in connection with the Services.  The 
Contractor further agrees to execute a sworn affidavit respecting the payment and lien releases of 
all subcontractors, suppliers, and materialmen, and release of lien respecting the Services at such 
time or times and in such form as may be reasonably requested by the District.  The Contractor 
will provide indemnification against all such liens for labor performed and/or materials supplied 
or used by the Contractor and/or any other person in connection with the Services undertaken by 
the Contractor, in accordance with Section 15, below. 

15. INDEMNIFICATION.   

a. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and 
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants (collectively, the 
“District Indemnitees”), from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, 
lawsuits, damages, and expenses (the “Claims”), including reasonable legal expenses and 
attorneys’ fees actually incurred, by the District Indemnitees arising directly or indirectly, in whole 
or in part, out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious 
act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or employees, in 
connection with this Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement or otherwise to the 
contrary, the Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District Indemnitees for the negligence 
of the District or the negligence of any other District Indemnitee, except the Contractor.  Except 
as otherwise provided by applicable law, this indemnification obligation will not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by 
or for the Contractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit 
acts, provided that in no event shall the Contractor be liable for special/consequential or punitive 
damages. 

b. In the event the Contractor fails to assume the defense of any Claims under 
this Section 15 within fifteen (15) days after notice from the District of the existence of such Claim, 
the District may assume the defense of the Claim with counsel of its own selection, and the 
Contractor will pay all reasonable expenses of such counsel.  Insurance coverage requirements 
specified in this Agreement shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the 
terms of this indemnification obligation.  

c. Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no 
way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation.  
The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary 
with respect to its obligations under this Agreement, including the indemnity obligations set forth 

15



0490.4200, 1297857 8

in Section 15.  This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.   

16. ASSIGNMENT.  The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof, 
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District.  Any attempted 
assignment of this Agreement in whole or in part with respect to which the District has not 
consented, in writing, shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever. 

17. SUB-CONTRACTORS.  The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the 
District for the performance of all Services in accordance with the terms set forth in this 
Agreement, whether performed by the Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor, 
and neither the District’s approval of any subcontractor, suppliers, or materialman, nor the failure 
of performance thereof by such persons or entities, will relieve, release, or affect in any manner 
the Contractor’s duties, liabilities, or obligations under this Agreement .  The Contractor shall not 
subcontract any Services without prior written approval by the District.  The Contractor agrees 
that each and every agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under 
this Agreement shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained in this 
Agreement holding the District harmless for the acts of the subcontractor.  Prior to commencing 
any Services, a subcontractor shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to the District in 
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement.  The Contractor further agrees that all such 
subcontracts shall provide that they may be terminated immediately without cost or penalty upon 
termination of this Agreement, other than payment for services rendered prior to the date of any 
such termination.  

18. TERMINATION.  In addition to the termination provisions contained in Section 2, 
above, this Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the Contractor upon delivery of 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the Contractor 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice.  Each Party may terminate this Agreement for cause at any 
time upon written notice to the other Party setting forth the cause for termination and the notified 
Party’s failure to cure the cause to the reasonable satisfaction of the Party given such notice within 
the cure period set forth in Section 19.  If this Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be 
paid for all the Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including 
reimbursable expenses due.  Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business.  Should 
either Party to this Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or commit a substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other 
Party, said other Party shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under 
this Agreement.  In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate with 
the District to ensure a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the District 
or its designees.  All time, fees, and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed by the 
Contractor to the District.   

19. DEFAULT.  If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms, 
covenants, and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this 
Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the 
default, at the address specified in Section 20 below, and the defaulting party will have ten (10) 
days from and after receipt of the notice to cure the default.  If the default is not of a type which 
can be cured within such ten (10)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the 

16



0490.4200, 1297857 9

non-defaulting party within such ten (10)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a 
cure, the defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default 
following the end of the ten (10)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defaulting party 
is at all times within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure.  If any 
default under this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will, in 
addition to any other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement and 
enforce the defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for injunction 
or specific performance. 

20. NOTICES.  Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must be 
in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service, 
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.  If given by registered or certified mail, 
the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of: (i) actual receipt 
by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent; or (ii) three 
days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage 
prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail.  If personally delivered or sent via nationally 
recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been given and received on 
the first to occur of: (i) one business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized 
overnight air courier service; or (ii) delivery to the party to whom it is addressed.  Any party hereto 
may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto as provided in this Section 20 
of this Agreement, designate additional persons to whom notices or communications will be given, 
and designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or 
communication will be given.  Such notices or communications will be given to the parties at their 
addresses set forth below: 

District: Wheatlands Metropolitan District 
YMCA at Wheatlands  
6100 S. Kewaunee Way 
Aurora, CO 80016  
Attention: Isabell Rodau 
Phone: (720) 524-2763 
Email: irodau@denverymca.org  
 

  
With a Copy to: WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000 
Centennial, CO  80122 
Attention: Clint C. Waldron, Esq. 
Phone: (303) 858-1800 
E-mail: cwaldron@wbapc.com 
 

  
Contractor: Affordable Services Corp. d/b/a Courtesy 

Plumbing & Heating  
9275 N Elm Ct 
Federal Heights, CO 80260  
Attention: Joe Putnam 

17



0490.4200, 1297857 10

Phone: (303) 688-0597 
Email: Denverdispatch@aphinc.net  
 

21. AUDITS.  The District shall have the right to audit, with reasonable notice,  any of 
the Contractor’s books and records solely as are necessary to substantiate any invoices and 
payments under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, receipts, time sheets, payroll, and 
personnel records) and the Contractor agrees to maintain adequate books and records for such 
purposes during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after termination of 
this Agreement and to make the same available to the District at all reasonable times and for so 
long thereafter as there may remain any unresolved question or dispute regarding any item 
pertaining thereto.  

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and obligations 
of each to the other as of this date, and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations, 
representations, agreements, or arrangements of any kind with respect to the Services, whether 
written or oral.  Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly set 
forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect.  This Agreement may not be modified except 
by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the District.   

23. BINDING AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

24. NO WAIVER.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such 
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, nor 
shall the waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default. 

25. GOVERNING LAW.   

a. Venue.  Venue for all actions arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
District Court in and for the county in which the District is located.  The Parties expressly and 
irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect venue of any such action, including, 
but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise.  At the District’s request, the Contractor 
shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement during any legal proceedings and 
the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed under this Agreement until and unless 
this Agreement is otherwise terminated.  

b. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall apply to any dispute, without regard to 
conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the State 
of Colorado. 

c. Litigation.  At the District’s request, the Contractor will consent to being 
joined in litigation between the District and third parties, but such consent shall not be construed 
as an admission of fault or liability.  The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays in the 
performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its reasonable control including delays 
caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or other regulatory authority to act 

18



0490.4200, 1297857 11

in a timely manner, or failure of the District to furnish timely information or to approve or 
disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner.  

26. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES.  In the performance of this Agreement, or in 
considering any requested approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time, the Parties agree 
that each will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or 
unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time 
required or requested pursuant to this Agreement. 

27. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET.  The District does 
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation 
whatsoever.  The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under 
this Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by 
the Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, or liability in any ensuing 
fiscal year beyond the then-current fiscal year.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed 
or interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-
fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or statutory 
debt limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the 
Constitution of the State of Colorado.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge 
or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds.  The District’s obligations under this 
Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall remain subject to the 
same for the entire term of this Agreement. 

28. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 
to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be 
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any 
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or 
available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et 
seq., C.R.S.  

29. NEGOTIATED PROVISIONS.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been 
prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed 
to the preparation of this Agreement. 

30. SEVERABILITY.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of any other portion of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect, the 
intention being that such portions are severable.  In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable 
provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms 
to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, 
valid, and enforceable. 

31. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such Agreement.  It is 

19



0490.4200, 1297857 12

the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving services or benefits 
under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only. 

32. OPEN RECORDS.  The Parties understand that all material provided or produced 
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq., 
C.R.S.  

33. WARRANTY.  The Contractor shall and does by this Agreement guarantee and 
warrant that all workmanship, materials, and equipment furnished, installed, or performed for the 
accomplishment of the Services (collectively, the “Work”) will be of good quality and new, unless 
otherwise required or permitted by this Agreement.  The Contractor further warrants that the Work 
will conform to all requirements of this Agreement and all other applicable laws, ordinances, 
codes, rules, and regulations of any governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work.  
All Services are subject to the satisfaction and acceptance of the District, but payments for the 
completed Work will not constitute final acceptance nor discharge the obligation of the Contractor 
to correct defects at a later date.  Such warranties set forth in this Agreement are in addition to, 
and not in lieu of, any other warranties prescribed by Colorado law. 

34. TAX EXEMPT STATUS.  The District is exempt from Colorado state sales and 
use taxes.  Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any 
invoices submitted to the District.  The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a copy 
of its certificate of tax exemption.  Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the Colorado 
Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exemption Certificate and purchase materials 
tax free.  The Contractor and subcontractors shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to 
apply for Exemption Certificates or for failure to use said certificate. 

35. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a 
PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories 
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules 
of evidence applicable to court proceedings. 

[Signature pages follow] 

20



District’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Water Heater 
Replacement Services with Courtesy Plumbing & Heating, dated February 9, 2023 

 
0490.4200, 1297857 13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first 
above written.  By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken all 
necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement. 

DISTRICT: 
WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 

 
Officer of the District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 

 
General Counsel for the District 
 

Brooke Holliman (Feb 17, 2023 17:32 MST)

21



Contractor’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Water Heater 
Replacement Services with Wheatlands Metropolitan District, dated February 9, 2023 

 
0490.4200, 1297857 14 

CONTRACTOR: 
AFFORDABLE SERVICES CORP. d/b/a 
COURTESY PLUMBING & HEATING, a 
Colorado corporation 
 

 
 
 
Printed Name 
 
Title 

 
 
STATE OF COLORADO )  
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ______________________ )  

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________ 

2023, by ____________________, as the ____________________ of Affordable Services Corp. 
d/b/a Courtesy Plumbing & Heating, a Colorado corporation. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires:   
  
  
  
 Notary Public 
 

22



0490.4200, 1297857 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES/COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

 

23



0490.4200, 1297857 A-2 
24



0490.4200, 1297857 A-3 
25



0490.4200, 1297857 A-4 
26



0490.4200, 1297857 A-5 

 

27



0490.4200, 1297857 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

CONTRACTOR’S COMPLETED W-9 

 
 

28



29



0490.4200, 1297857 C-1

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of 
Section 11 of this Agreement. 
 
1. Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all 

employees of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy 
amounts and coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services 
will be performed. 

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than 
$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability; $2,000,000 
designated location, general aggregate; and $1,000,000 umbrella.  Such insurance will 
include coverage for contractual liability, personal injury, and broad form property 
damage, and shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive basis 
including, but not limited to:   

a. premises operations; 
b. personal injury liability without employment exclusion; 
c. limited contractual; 
d. broad form property damages, including completed operations; 
e. medical payments; 
f. products and completed operations; 
g. independent consultants coverage; and 
h. coverage inclusive of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 

procedures, employed in the capacity of a construction consultant. 
 

This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations 
contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or 
property damage. 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned, and hired 
automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of 
liability of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property 
damage.  This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification 
obligations contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of 
bodily injury or property damage. 

4. Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

30



0490.4200, 1297857 C-1-1 

EXHIBIT C-1 

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE 

 

31



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

2/10/2023

CCIG
155 Inverness Drive West
Englewood CO 80112

Austin Fields
720-212-2056 720-212-2056

Austin.Fields@thinkccig.com

License#: 45339 Nationwide Mutual Ins Co 23787
AFFOPLU-01 Depositors Ins. Company 42587

Courtesy Plumbing & Heating
9275 Elm Court
Federal Heights CO 80260-5205

Pinnacol Assurance 41190

2104825963

A X 1,000,000
X 100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000
X

ACP 3100345516 4/1/2022 4/1/2023

2,000,000

B 1,000,000

X

X X

ACP 3100345516 4/1/2022 4/1/2023

A X X 5,000,000ACP 3100345516 4/1/2022 4/1/2023

5,000,000
X 0

C X4236829 6/1/2022 6/1/2023

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
A Leased/Rented Equipment ACP 3100345516 4/1/2022 4/1/2023 50,000

Wheatlands Metro District
6601 South Wheatlands Parkway
Aurora CO 80016

32



ACP GLDO3100345516 L83U 22103 INSURED COPY 46 0000090
33



ACP GLDO3100345516 L83U 22103 INSURED COPY 46 0000091
34



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 73 23 12 16

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CONTRACTORS ENHANCEMENT PLUS ENDORSEMENT

INCLUDING MEDICAL PAYMENTS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. Lost Key Coverage D. Expanded Property Damage Coverage
1 Section I – Coverages, Coverage A. Under 1. For the purposes of this endorsement only:

Bodily Injury And Property Damage Section I – Coverages, Coverage A
Liability, coverage is extended to include Bodily Injury And Property Damage
the following: Liability, 2. Exclusions, j.Exclusion
If a customer's master or grand key, Damage To Property is amended as follows:
excluding electronic key card, is lost, Paragraphs , , and are deleteda. (3) (5) (6)
damaged or stolen while in your care, in their entirety.
custody or control we will pay the cost of b. (4)Paragraph is deleted in its entirety
replacing the keys, including the master lock and replaced with:
and all keys used in the same lock, the cost

(4) Personal property in the care,of adjusting locks to accept the new keys, or
custody, or control of the insured:the cost to replace the locks, whichever is
(a) for storage or sale at premisesless.

you own, rent or occupy; or2. Limit of Insurance – For the purpose of this
(b) while being transported by anycoverage the most we will pay is $ 10,000

aircraft, "auto" or watercraftper “occurrence”.
owned or operated by or rentedB. Voluntary Property Damage
to or loaned to any insured.

1. Section I – Coverages,Coverage A Bodily
c. The coverage provided by thisInjury And Property Damage Liability,

endorsement does not apply tocoverages extendedo includethefollowing:
“property damage”:

At your request, we will pay for “property
(1) Arising out of the disappearance ordamage” to propertyof others caused by you

loss of use of personal property; orandwhilein yourpossession,risingout of your
(2) Included in the “products-completedbusiness operationsand occurring during the

operations hazard”.policyperiod.
2. Limit of Insurance - The most we will pay2. Limit of Insurance – For the purpose of this

for loss arising out of any one “occurrence”coverage the most we will pay is $1,500 per
is $5,000.“occurrence”.

3. Deductible - Our obligation to pay for aC. Non-Owned Watercraft
covered loss applies only to the amount ofUnder Section I – Coverages, Coverage A
loss in excess of $250.Bodily Injury And Property Damage Liability,
We will pay the deductible amount to effect2. Exclusions, g. Aircraft, Auto OrExclusion
settlement of any claim or ”suit” and, uponWatercraft (2) (a)Paragraph is replaced with:
notification of this action having been taken,(a) Less than 51 feet long; and
you shall promptly reimburse us for the
deductible as has been paid by us.

CG 73 23 12 16 Page 1 of 5Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,
with its permission.

ACP GLDO3100345516 L83U 22103 INSURED COPY 46 0000095
35



CG 73 23 12 16
This insurance is primary to any expanded All reasonable expenses incurred by thed.
property damage coverage provided by a insured at our request to assist us in the
separate endorsement attached to this investigation or defense of the claim or
policy, and it will supplant any deductible in “suit”, including actual loss of earnings up to
said endorsement $500 a day because of time off from work.

E. Damage To Premises Rented To You G. Newly Formed And Acquired Organizations
1 Section I – Coverages, Coverage A SECTION II – WHO IS AN INSURED. Under Under

Bodily Injury And Property Damage Paragraph is replaced with:3.a.
Liability 2., the last paragraph of a. Coverage under this provision is afforded
Exclusions is replaced with: thonly until the 180 day after you acquire or
If is form the organization or the end of the policyDamage To Premises Rented To You
not otherwise excluded, Exclusions period, whichever is earlier;c.
through do not apply to damage by fire,n. H. Additional Insured – Automatic Status When
lightning, explosion, smoke, or sprinkler Required In An Agreement Or Contract With
leakage to premises while rented to you or You
temporarily occupied by you with permission

Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended toof the owner. include:
2 Section III – Limits Of Insurance. Under , 1. Any person(s) or organization(s) described

Paragraph 6 is replaced with: in Paragraph below with whom youa. – d.
6. 5.Subject to above, the Damage To have agreed in writing in a contract or

Premises Rented To You Limit is the written agreement that such person or
most we will pay under Coverage for organization be added as an additionalA
damages because of “property damage” insured on your policy during the policy
to any one premises, while rented to period shown in the Declarations.
you, or in the case of damage by fire, 2. Any other person or organization you are
lightning, explosion, smoke or sprinkler required to add as an additional insured
leakage, while rented to you or under the contract or agreement described
temporarily occupied by you with in Paragraph above.1.
permission of the owner. The limit is

The person or organization added as anincreased to $1,000,000.
insured by this endorsement is an insured

3. Section IV – Commercial GeneralUnder only for liability due to:
Liability Conditions, 4 Other Insurance, b..

a. Lessors of Leased Equipment – withExcess Insurance (1) (a) (ii) is replaced
respect to their liability for “bodily injury”,with:
“property damage”, or “personal and

(ii) That is Fire, Lightning, Explosion, Smoke advertising injury”, caused in whole or in
or Sprinkler leakage insurance for part by your maintenance, operation, or
premises rented to you or temporarily use of equipment leased to you by such
occupied by you with permission of the person(s) or organization(s). This
owner. insurance does not apply to any

F. Supplementary Payments “occurrence” which takes place after the
equipment lease expires.Under Section I – Coverages, Supplementary

Payments – Coverages A and B Paragraphs However, their status as additional
1.b 1.d.and are replaced with: insured under this policy ends when

their lease, contract, or agreement withb. Up to $2,500 for cost of bail bonds required
you for such leased equipment expires.because of accidents or traffic law violations

arising out of the use of any vehicle to which b. Managers or Lessors of Premises –
the Bodily Injury Liability Coverage applies. with respect to liability arising out of the
We do not have to furnish these bonds. ownership, maintenance, or use of that

part of the premises you own, rent,
lease, or occupy.

Page 2 of 5 CG 73 23 12 16Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,
with its permission.

ACP GLDO3100345516 L83U 22103 INSURED COPY 46 0000096
36



CG 73 23 12 16
This insurance does not apply to: (1) Your acts or omissions; or
(1) Any “occurrence” which takes place (2) The acts or omissions of those

after you cease to be a tenant in acting on your behalf; in the
that premises. performance of your ongoing

operations performed for that(2) Structural alterations, new con-
additional insured, whether the workstruction, or demolition operations
is performed by you or on yourperformed by or on behalf of the
behalf.person or organization.

The insurance does not apply to:However, their status as additional
(1) “Bodily injury”, “property damage”,insured under this policy ends when you

or “personal and advertising injury”cease to be a tenant of such premises.
arising out of the rendering of or thec. State or Political Subdivision –
failure to render any professionalPermits Relating to Premises – with
architectural, engineering, or surveyrespect to the following hazards for
services, including:which the state or political subdivision
(a) The preparing, approving, orhas issued a permit or authorization in

failing to prepare or approveconnection with premises you own, rent,
maps, shop drawings, opinions,or control and to which this insurance
reports, survey, field orders,applies.
change orders, or drawings and(1) The existence, maintenance, repair,
specifications; orconstruction, erection, or removal of

(b) Supervisory, inspection, archi-advertising signs, awnings,
tectural or engineering activities.canopies, cellar entrances, coal

holes, driveways, manholes, This exclusion applies even if
marquees, hoist away openings, the claims against any insured
sidewalk vaults, street banners, or allege negligence or other
decorations and similar exposures; wrongdoing in the supervision,
or hiring, employment, training or

monitoring of others by that(2) The construction, erection, or
insured, if the “occurrence”removal of elevators; or
which caused the “bodily injury”(3) The ownership maintenance or use
or “property damage”, or theof any elevators covered by this
offense which caused theinsurance.
“personal and advertising

This insurance does not apply to: injury”, involved the rendering
(1) “Bodily injury” or “property damage” of, or failure to render, any

or “personal or advertising injury” professional, architectural,
arising out of operations performed engineering, or surveying
for the state or municipality; or services.

(2) “Bodily injury” or “property damage” (2) "Bodily injury" or "property damage"
occurring after:included within the “products-

completed operations hazard”. (a) All work, including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished inHowever, such state or political
connection with such work, onsubdivision’s status as additional
the project (other than service,insured under this policy ends when the
maintenance, or repairs) to bepermit ends.
performed by or on behalf of the

d Owners, Lessees, or Contractors. – additional insured(s) at the
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", location of the covered
"property damage", or "personal and operations has been completed;
advertising injury" caused in whole or in or
part, by:

CG 73 23 12 16 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., Page 3 of 5
with its permission.

ACP GLDO3100345516 L83U 22103 INSURED COPY 46 0000097
37



CG 73 23 12 16
(b) That portion of "your work" out b. You have agreed in writing in a contract

of which the injury or damage or agreement that this insurance would
arises has been put to its be primary and would not seek
intended use by any person or contribution from any other insurance
organization other than another available to the additional insured.
contractor or subcontractor I. Employee Bodily Injury To Another Employee
engaged in performing

Under TheSection II – Who Is An Insuredoperations for a principal as a
following is added to Paragraph 2.a.(1):part of the same project.
Paragraphs do not apply2.a.(1) (a), (b) and (c)However, a person or organization’s
to “bodily injury” to a co-“employee” in thestatus as additional insured under
course of the co-“employee’s” employment bythis policy ends when your
you, or to “bodily injury” to a co-“volunteeroperations for that additional insured
worker” while performing duties related to theare completed.
conduct of your business.With respect to the insurance afforded to

J. Broad Form Named Insuredsuch additional insureds describeda. – d.
above, the following is added to Section III Under TheSection II – Who Is An Insured
– Limits Of Insurance: following is added to Paragraph 2.:
If coverage provided to the additional e. Any business entity incorporated or
insured is required by a contract or organized under the laws of the United State
agreement, the most we will pay on behalf of of America (including any State thereof), its
the additional insured is the amount of territories or possessions, or Canadainsurance:

(including any Province thereof) in which the
1. Required by the contract or agreement; Named Insured shown in the Declarations

or owns, during the policy period, an interest of
2. Available under the applicable Limits of more than fifty percent. If other valid

Insurance shown in the Declarations: collectible insurance is available to any
whichever is less. business entity covered by this solely by

reason of ownership by the Named InsuredThis endorsement shall not increase the
shown in the Declarations in excess of fiftyapplicable Limits of Insurance shown in the
percent, this insurance is excess over theDeclarations.
other insurance, whether primary, excess,However, the insurance afforded to such
contingent, or on any other basis.additional insureds described above:a. – d.

K. Aggregate Limit Per Location1. Only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and Under theSection III – Limits Of Insurance

following is added to Paragraph :22. Will not be broader than that which you
are required by the contract or The General Aggregate Limit under Section III
agreement to provide for such additional Limits Of Insurance applies separately to each
insured. of your locations owned by or rented to you or

3 Primary and Noncontributory – Other. temporarily occupied by you with the permission
Insurance Conditions of the owner. For the purposes of this provision,

location means premises involving the same orThe following is added to the Other
connecting lots, or premises whose connectionInsurance Condition and supersedes any
is interrupted only by a public street, roadway,provisions to the contrary:
waterway or railroad right-of-way.Primary and Noncontributory Insurance

L. Aggregate Limit Per ProjectThis insurance is primary to and will not
seek contribution from any other insurance Under TheSection III – Limits Of Insurance
available to an additional insured under your following paragraph is added to Paragraph :2
policy provided that: The General Aggregate Limit under Section III
a. The additional insured is a Named Limits Of Insurance applies separately to each

Insured under such other insurance; and of your construction projects away from
premises owned by or rented to you.

Page 4 of 5 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., CG 73 23 12 16
with its permission.

ACP GLDO3100345516 L83U 22103 INSURED COPY 46 0000098
38



CG 73 23 12 16
M. Medical Payments inception date of the policy shall not

prejudice the coverage afforded by thisUnder ,Section III – Limits Of Insurance
policy provided such failure to disclose allParagraph is replaced with:7.
hazards or prior “occurrences” or offenses is

7. 5.Subject to above, the higher of: not intentional. This provision does not
a. $10,000; or affect our right to collect additional premium
b. The amount shown in the Declarations or exercise our right of cancellation or non-

for Medical Expense Limit is the most renewal.
we will pay under Coverage for allC P. Waiver Of Subrogation
medical expenses because of “bodily Under Section IV – Commercial General
injury” sustained by one person. Liability Conditions 8. Transfer Of Rights Of,

This coverage does not apply if Coverage C Recovery Against Others To Us the following
– Medical Payments is excluded either by paragraph is added:
the provisions of any coverage forms If required by a written contract executed prior to
attached to the policy or by endorsement. loss, we waive any right of subrogation we may

N. Knowledge Of An Occurrence have against the contracting person or
Under Section IV – Commercial General organization because of payments we make for
Liability Conditions, the following is added to injury or damage arising out of your ongoing
2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, operations or “your work” done under a contract
Offense, Claim Or Suit: with that person or organization and included in

the “products-completed operations hazard”.e. Knowledge of an occurrence, offense, claim
Q. Liberalizationor suit by an agent or employee of any

insured shall not in itself constitute Under Section IV – Commercial General
knowledge of the insured unless you, a Liability Conditions, the following paragraph is
partner, if you are a partnership; or an added:
executive officer or insurance manager, if 10. Liberalization
you are a corporation receives such notice

If we revise this coverage form to provide moreof an occurrence, offense, claim or suit from
coverage without additional premium charge,the agent or employee.
your policy will automatically provide thef. Paragraph b.The requirements in will not
additional coverage as of the day the revision isbe considered breached unless there is effective in your state.

knowledge of occurrence as outlined in
R. Broadened Bodily Injury Definition (MentalParagraph above.e.

Anguish)
O. Unintentional Failure To Disclose Hazard

Under DefinitionSection V – Definitions 3.
Under Section IV – Commercial General “Bodily Injury” is replaced with:Liability Conditions 6., Condition

3. “Bodily injury” means physical injury,Representations the following paragraph is
sickness, or disease to a person and ifadded:
arising out of the foregoing, mental anguish,d. Your failure to disclose all hazards or prior mental injury, shock, or humiliation,

“occurrences” or offenses existing as of the including death at any time resulting
therefrom.

All terms and conditions of this policy apply unless modified by this endorsement.

CG 73 23 12 16 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., Page 5 of 5
with its permission.

ACP GLDO3100345516 L83U 22103 INSURED COPY 46 0000099
39



7501 E. Lowry Blvd.
Denver, CO 80230-7006
303.361.4000 / 800.873.7242
Pinnacol.com

Spartan Management Group & Affordable
1515 Logan Ave
Cheyenne, WY 82001

CCIG
155 Inverness Drive West
Englewood, CO 80112
(303) 799-0110

            7501 E. Lowry Blvd Denver, CO 80230-7006
Page 1 of 1 P PEREZV - Underwriter 06/16/2022 08:44:06 4236829  59965563 359-B

NCCI #: WC000313B
Policy #: 4236829

ENDORSEMENT: Blanket Waiver of Subrogation

Effective Date:June 16, 2022                        Expires on: June 1, 2023
Pinnacol Assurance has issued this endorsement June 16, 2022

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not 
enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. This agreement applies only to the 
extent that you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit anyone not named in the Schedule.

SCHEDULE

To any person or organization when agreed to under a written contract or agreement, as defined above 
and with the insured, which is in effect and executed prior to any loss.

40



0490.4200, 1297857 D-1 

EXHIBIT D  

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING WITH COLORADO SECRETARY OF STATE 

 

 

41



 

1 
0490.4200; 1293800  

FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO  

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  
(District Management Services and Clubhouse Management & 

Programming)  
              

  
This FIRST AMENDMENT TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT   (this 

“First Amendment”) is entered into this 16th day of February, 2023, effective as of February 1, 
2023, by and between WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and THE YOUNG 
MEN’S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF METROPOLITAN DENVER d/b/a YMCA OF 
METROPOLITAN DENVER, a Colorado nonprofit corporation (the “Contractor”). The District 
and the Contractor are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.”  
  

RECITALS:  
  
  WHEREAS, the Parties entered into that certain Independent Contractor Agreement 
(District Management Services and Clubhouse Management and Programming) dated November 
10, 2022 (the “Agreement”); and  
  
  WHEREAS, the Agreement sets forth the scope of services to be completed and the 
compensation schedule therefor; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the scope of services and compensation schedule 
set forth in the Agreement to reflect removal of cleaning services. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 
herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties covenant and agree as follows:  
  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  
  

1. AMENDMENT TO SCOPE OF SERVICES AND COMPENSATION 
SCHEDULE.  The Parties hereby amend and restate in its entirety the Scope of Services set forth 
in Exhibit A to the Agreement with the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit A and the 
Compensation Schedule set forth in Exhibit B to the Agreement with the Compensation Schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. This First Amendment shall be effective February 1, 2023.  

 
2. PRIOR PROVISIONS EFFECTIVE.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all 

the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  
  

42



 

2 
0490.4200; 1293800  

3. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This First Amendment may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. Executed copies of this First Amendment may be 
delivered by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals 
and binding upon the signatories to this First Amendment. 

 
[Signature page follows.] 

 

43



 

3 
0490.4200; 1293800  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment on the date 
first above written.  By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken 
all necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this First Amendment.  
  

DISTRICT: 
WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 

 
Officer of the District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 

 
General Counsel for the District 
  
  
  

CONTRACTOR: 
THE YOUNG MEN’S CHRISTIAN 
ASSOCIATION OF METROPOLITAN 
DENVER d/b/a YMCA OF METROPOLITAN 
DENVER, a Colorado non-profit corporation 
 

 
 
 
Printed Name 
 
Title 

 
  

Brooke Holliman (Feb 17, 2023 17:32 MST)

Sue Glass

President & CEO

44



0490.4200; 1270745 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
 The role of the Contractor, hereinafter referred to as the “Manager,” is to report to, advise and 
implement the decisions and policies established by the Board of Directors of the District and 
manage operations of the District as described below. Please note that operation, maintenance and 
management of the Pool is specifically excluded from the Scope of Services as those services are 
provided by separate contract with the Manager. Generally, the Manager will be responsible for 
providing the following services, as more specifically discussed and supplemented on the 
following pages: 
 
General Administration 
The Manager shall provide general administrative and management services to the District as 
determined by the Board from time to time. The Manager shall administer District operations 
including: trash service and landscape maintenance, and provide a meaningful 
Board/Homeowner/Manager relationship. The Manager shall work with the Board and the 
Board’s agents including the District’s accountant and attorney to effectively manage the District. 
The Manager will identify problems or opportunities to deliver services more efficiently or more 
cost effectively and present alternatives to the Board. In order to provide timely responses to 
property owners, the Manager will use best efforts to respond to all calls and emails within 24 
hours, except for messages left on Saturday or Sunday which shall be returned the following 
Monday.  
 
Board Meetings 
The Manager shall provide administrative support services to the Board including delivering 
Board packet information to District Counsel at least one week before meetings. The Manager 
shall attend all Board meetings as requested by the Board in order to report to and advise the 
Board on matters concerning the District. If the Manager attends more than eight (8) Board 
meetings per year, additional meetings will be billed at $50/hour. 
 
Owner Requests 
The Manager shall assist in resolving individual owner’s request as they pertain to the District, 
District facilities and governing rules and regulations, and report to and advise the Board as 
necessary and appropriate.  
 
District Governing Documents 
The Manager shall report to and advise the Board in the development of rules, regulations, 
guidelines and policies. The Manger is empowered to enforce the rules, regulations, and 
guidelines of the District. The Manager shall provide oversight for covenant enforcement by 
Community Preservation Specialists, Inc.  
 
Maintain District Files 

45



 

A-2 
0490.4200; 1293800  

The Manager shall maintain records pertaining to trash service, landscape maintenance and other 
services and contracts of the District involving the Manager, and maintain all such documents in 
a current status. All such records shall belong to the District. 
 
Owner List 
The Manager shall maintain a current and accurate register of owners and such other registers or 
schedules as my be required by the Board. 
 
Website 
The Manager shall advise or maintain the District’s website at www.wheatlandsmetro.org as 
directed by the Board from time to time. The Manager shall coordinate communications (email 
blasts, newsletters, etc.) to owners and keep a current calendar of events on the District’s website. 
 
Additional Duties 
The Manager shall complete a monthly inspection and walkthrough of District owned and 
maintained property and provide an inspection report noting general condition of grounds and 
facilities and make recommendations for any necessary work. The Manager shall assist with the 
District’s property and asset list for purposes of property insurance. 
 
Contract Administration 
The Manager shall report to and advise the Board regarding the maintenance of property, 
improvements, and equipment of the District, as applicable, and shall administer work orders and 
contracts as approved by the Board as may be directed by the Board from time to time. 
 
Service Contracting 
The Manager shall solicit, analyze, and compare bids, and negotiate contracts for execution by 
the Board for the services of contractors for any requisite grounds maintenance, landscaping, snow 
removal, security services, trash service and all other services required by the District, as 
requested by the Board from time to time. The Manager’s role shall be to report to and advise the 
Board regarding vendors and bids most favorable to the District. The Board shall have the sole 
discretion and authority to award, terminate or take any official action related to contracts for 
services within the District. The Manager may charge an additional fee for services as necessary, 
see Exhibit B. 
 
Monitor Contractor’s Performance 
The Manager shall review service contractor’s performance and recommend changes to the Board 
based upon experience to provide greater efficiency and lower maintenance effort or cost. The 
Manager’s role shall be to report to and advise the Board regarding service contractor 
performance. The Manager shall have no authority or discretion to take any action against a 
service contractor without direction from the Board. 
 
Bid Specifications 
The Manager will, at the direction of the Board, prepare bid specifications for grounds 
maintenance, landscaping, lighting, snow removal, security services, trash service and other 
services contracts as required. The Manager will develop detailed services request for proposal, 

46



 

A-3 
0490.4200; 1293800  

solicit bids for contracts, review bids, check references of bidders, and make recommendations to 
the Board, as directed by the Board. The Manager’s role shall be to report to and advise the Board 
regarding bid specifications. It is understood that the Board will make all final decisions on 
contractor selection and termination when bidding is involved. 
 
Maintenance Administration 
 
Work Orders 
The Manager will assign work orders to contractors for routine maintenance and repairs as 
authorized by the Board. The Manager will also provide follow-up to assure that assigned work 
is satisfactorily completed or reassigned, if necessary. Subcontractors operating under the 
Manager are directly accountable to the Manager, and invoices for services from subcontractors 
are to be remitted to and paid for by the Manager, in a timely manner, and will be paid for by the 
District directly, but may be submitted for reimbursement in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
Supplies 
The Manager shall ensure that supplies are purchased for the District, as authorized by the Board. 
At the Board’s discretion, the Manager may obtain supplies directly or through a subcontractor or 
vendor. Such purchases, as long as they are preauthorized by the Board, will be at the expense of 
the District. The District authorizes up to $500 annually for the cost of supplies. Payments and 
other financial obligations related to supplies owed to subcontractors or vendors that are 
authorized by the Manager, but not otherwise approved by the Board, or for contractors and 
vendors not operating under direct contact with the District, shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Manager, until such time as authorized by the Board. Once said work or service is approved and 
authorized by the Board, the Manager shall be reimbursed for said expenses, subject to submitting 
itemized invoices. 
 
Financial Services 
The Manager shall provide financial management support to the District. The Manager shall 
support the District’s accountant with accounting and bookkeeping relating to facilities 
maintenance and service contracts, in a timely manner. 
 
Annual Budget 
The Manager shall work in conjunction with the District accountant to provide information 
necessary for preparation of the annual budget for the District. 
 
Monthly Accounting 
The Manager will maintain records showing receipts and expenditures of the District’s petty cash 
fund, if established, and provide accounting reports on a monthly basis. The Manager will review 
service contractor invoices at the request of the District’s accountant to determine completion of 
the work, accuracy and compliance with any quotes or bids, and advise the accountant on whether 
payment should be made or held, in accordance with the established and approved workflow, as 
determined by the Board from time to time. 
 
 

47



 

A-4 
0490.4200; 1293800  

Home Re-Sale/Refinance or New Sale Coordination 
The Manager will provide a New Resident Welcome Letter and Information Package and facilitate 
membership transfers. 
 
 
After-Hours Service 
The Manager will provide a 24-hour response line, which will be monitored continuously during 
non-business hours by a representative of the Manager for the purpose of responding to after-
hours situations requiring immediate attention. At the discretion of the Manager and in 
conjunction with guidance provided by the Board, the Manager will assign appropriate 
independent contractors to resolve the matter. 
 

 
CLUBHOUSE MANAGEMENT & PROGRAMING 

 
The Manager shall provide the day-to-day management of the Wheatlands Metropolitan 

District Clubhouse located at 6601 S. Wheatlands Parkway, Aurora, Colorado (the “Clubhouse”). 
 

Management Services 
The Manager is responsible for the operation, maintenance and repair of the interior and exterior 
of the Clubhouse building, systems, and facilities including fire control, HVAC, security, pest 
control, cable television, and wireless access.  
 
Supplies and Equipment 
The Manager shall provide the supplies, equipment, and furnishings required for performance of 
the duties at the Clubhouse, as approved by the Board of Directors. All equipment, supplies, and 
furnishings paid for or reimbursed by the District shall be and remain the property of the District, 
and shall be insured by the District. The Manager shall not dispose of any District property without 
the prior written consent of the District, except for supplies and other property that are routinely 
used and consumed in the operation of the Clubhouse. The Manager is responsible for the care 
and safekeeping of all District property used in connection with the Clubhouse. 
 
User/Resident Access 
The Manager shall maintain the District’s user/resident access database and all related work 
including, but not limited to updating owner information, activating and deactivating key fobs, 
and reprogramming access points and entries. The Manager shall manage access to and rental of 
the Clubhouse, including ensuring completion of rental applications, collecting and dispersing 
rental fees and deposits, and ensuring compliance with policies, rules, regulations, and guidelines 
of the District.  
 
Maintenance Administration 
 
Work Orders 
The Manager will assign work orders to contractors for routine maintenance as authorized by the 
Board. The Manager will also provide follow-up to assure that assigned work is satisfactorily 

48



 

A-5 
0490.4200; 1293800  

completed or reassigned, if necessary. Subcontractors operating under the Manager are directly 
accountable to the Manager, and invoices for services from subcontractors are to be remitted to 
the Manager, in a timely manner, and will be paid for by the District directly. 
 
Supplies 
The Manager shall ensure that supplies are purchased for the District, as authorized by the Board. 
At the Board’s discretion, the Manager may obtain supplies directly or through a subcontractor or 
vendor. Such purchases, as long as they are preauthorized by the Board, will be at the expense of 
the District. The District authorizes up to $500 annually for the cost of supplies. Payments and 
other financial obligations related to supplies owed to subcontractors or vendors that are 
authorized by the Manager, but not otherwise approved by the Board, or for contractors and 
vendors not operating under direct contact with the District, shall be the sole responsibility of the 
Manager, until such time as authorized by the Board. Once said work or service is approved and 
authorized by the Board, the Manager shall be reimbursed for said expenses, subject to submitting 
itemized invoices. 
 
Programing  
The Manager shall provide programming and activities (i.e. movie nights, yoga, art classes, kid’s 
night out, homework help, etc.) to the residents of the community at no additional cost to the 
District. Fees and charges for any programming and activities shall be paid for directly by the 
attendee(s), unless otherwise agreed to by the District. 

49



 

B-1 
0490.4200; 1293800  

EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE  

 
The District shall pay Contractor an annual management fee of $84,150 in twelve monthly 
installments of $7,012.50 for the Services to be performed under this Agreement. 
 
The foregoing includes district management services, rental reservations, and rental checkouts as 
needed.  
 

The management fee includes checks of the clubhouse, as applicable, after rentals. If additional 
cleaning is required after a rental, the Contractor will notify the District and the rental party will be 
billed for additional cleaning fee as set forth in the District’s Clubhouse Use Policy.  

 

Services beyond the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A shall be provided at a rate negotiated 
between the District and the Contractor. 

 

50



 

1 
0490.4200; 1297858 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO  

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  
(Pool Maintenance & Staffing Services)  

              
  

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT   (this 
“First Amendment”) is entered into this 9th day of February, 2023, and effective as of January 1, 
2023, by and between WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and THE YOUNG 
MEN’S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF METROPOLITAN DENVER d/b/a YMCA OF 
METROPOLITAN DENVER, a Colorado nonprofit corporation (the “Contractor”). The District 
and the Contractor are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.”  
  

RECITALS:  
  
  WHEREAS, the Parties entered into that certain Independent Contractor Agreement (Pool 
Maintenance & Staffing Services) dated November 10, 2022 (the “Agreement”); and  
  
  WHEREAS, the Agreement sets forth the scope of services to be completed and the 
compensation schedule therefor; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the scope of services and compensation schedule 
set forth in the Agreement to reflect a change in rate. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 
herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties covenant and agree as follows:  
  

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  
  

1. AMENDMENT TO SCOPE OF SERVICES/COMPENSATION SCHEDULE.  
The Parties hereby amend and restate in its entirety the first sentence of the Scope of 
Services/Compensation Schedule set forth on page A-1 of Exhibit A to the Agreement as follows:  

 
For Services provided between January 1, 2023 to midnight on 
December 31, 2023, the District shall pay Contractor an annual rate 
of $166,672.65, which shall be paid in twelve monthly installments 
of $13,889.39.   
 

This First Amendment shall be effective January 1, 2023. 
 

51



 

2 
0490.4200; 1297858 

2. PRIOR PROVISIONS EFFECTIVE.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all 
the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  
  

3. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This First Amendment may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. Executed copies of this First Amendment may be 
delivered by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals 
and binding upon the signatories to this First Amendment. 

 
[Signature page follows] 

 

52



 

3 
0490.4200; 1297858 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment on the date 
first above written.  By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken 
all necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this First Amendment.  
  

DISTRICT: 
WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 

 
Officer of the District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 

 
General Counsel for the District 
  
  
  

CONTRACTOR: 
THE YOUNG MEN’S CHRISTIAN 
ASSOCIATION OF METROPOLITAN 
DENVER d/b/a YMCA OF METROPOLITAN 
DENVER, a Colorado non-profit corporation 
 

 
 
 
Printed Name 
 
Title 

 
 

Brooke Holliman (Feb 17, 2023 17:32 MST)

Sue Glass

President & CEO

53



 

1 
0490.4200; 1297855 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(WATER METER INSTALLATION SERVICES) 

     
  
 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (the 
“First Amendment”) is entered into as of the 16th day of February 2023, effective as of December 
31, 2022, by and between the WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and APEX 
PLUMBING, INC., a Colorado corporation (the “Contractor”), collectively referred to herein as 
the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an Independent Contractor Agreement (Water Meter 
Installation Services), dated August 3, 2022 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire extend the termination date of the Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 
herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties covenant and agree as follows: 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. REVISED TERM/RENEWAL. The Parties hereby extend the termination date in 
Paragraph 2 of the Agreement to midnight on December 31, 2023.   

 
2. PRIOR PROVISIONS EFFECTIVE.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all the 

terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
3. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This First Amendment may be executed in 

several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. Executed copies of this First Amendment may be delivered 
by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding 
upon the signatories to this First Amendment. 

 
[Signature page follows.] 

 
 
 

54



 

2 
0490.4200; 1297855 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this First Amendment to be duly 
executed and delivered by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date first 
above written. 
 

DISTRICT:  
WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
       Officer of the District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
General Counsel to the District 

CONTRACTOR:  
APEX PLUMBING, INC., a Colorado 
corporation 
 
 

               
             By:        
        Its:        

 

Brooke Holliman (Feb 17, 2023 17:32 MST)

Jim McLemore
Director of Sales and Marketing

55



0490.4200; 1293772 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(CLUBHOUSE CLEANING SERVICES) 

      
 

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits 
attached hereto (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of the 16th day of February 2023, effective 
as of February 1, 2023, by and between WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and 
SAQUIMUX SERVICES, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (the “Contractor”).  The 
District and the Contractor are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions 
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. for the purpose of constructing, financing, operating, and 
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its taxpayers, residents, and users; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is empowered to enter 
into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(i), C.R.S., the District is empowered to appoint, 
hire, and retain agents, employees, engineers, and attorneys; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain services as are 
needed by the District to serve the property within and without its boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented that it has the professional experience, skill, 
and resources to perform the services, as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth 
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES; PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.  The Contractor shall 
perform the services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Services”): (a) in a professional manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using 
the degree of skill and knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar 
services; (b) within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in said Exhibit 
A; and (c) using reasonable commercial efforts to minimize any annoyance, interference, or 
disruption to the residents, tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District.  Exhibit A may 
take any form, including forms which may include price and payment terms.  In the event of any 
conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, 
the terms in the body of this Agreement shall govern.  Contractor shall have no right or authority, 
express or implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate 

56



0490.4200; 1293772 2

the District in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this Agreement 
(including Exhibit A) or through other authorization expressly delegated to or authorized by the 
District through its Board of Directors. 

2. TERM/RENEWAL.  This Agreement shall be effective as of February 1, 2023 and 
shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) termination pursuant to Section 18 hereof or (ii) or 
December 31, 2023.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless terminated pursuant to subsection (i) 
above, or unless the District determines not to appropriate funds for this Agreement for the next 
succeeding year, this Agreement shall automatically renew on January 1 of each succeeding year 
for an additional one (1) year term. 

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  The District may, in writing, request the Contractor 
provide additional services not set forth in Exhibit A.  The terms and conditions of the provision 
of such services shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Contractor and the District pursuant 
to a written service/work order executed by an authorized representative of the District and the 
Contractor or an addendum to this Agreement.  Authorization to proceed with additional services 
shall not be given unless the District has appropriated funds sufficient to cover the additional 
compensable amount.  To the extent additional services are provided pursuant to this Section 3, 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement relating to Services shall also apply to any additional 
services rendered. 

4. REPAIRS/CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any 
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties.  The 
Contractor will promptly repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of 
any damage to property caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents, or equipment.  In 
addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims of which it 
becomes aware.  The Contractor further agrees to take all reasonable steps to preserve all physical 
evidence and information, which may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a potential 
claim, while maintaining public safety, and to grant to the District the opportunity to review and 
inspect such evidence, including the scene of any damage or accidents.  The Contractor shall be 
responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the Services and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage or 
injury to persons and property, including any material and equipment related to the Services, 
whether in storage on or off site, under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors. 

5. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. 

a. The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and 
location of the Services; (ii) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be 
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment, and facilities 
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services; 
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the 
Contractor.  Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such 
examination and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision 
thereof made to it by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement.  
The Contractor represents that it has or shall acquire the capacity and the professional experience 

57



0490.4200; 1293772 3

and skill to perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the 
standards of care, skill, and diligence provided by competent professionals who perform services 
of a similar nature to those specified in this Agreement.  If competent professionals find that the 
Contractor’s performance of the Services does not meet this standard, the Contractor shall, at the 
District’s request, re-perform the Services not meeting this standard without additional 
compensation.   

b. The Contractor shall use reasonable commercial efforts to perform and 
complete the Services in a timely manner.  If performance of the Services by the Contractor is 
delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, or if conditions of the scope or 
type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give prompt notice to the District of such 
a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or compensation, as negotiated 
between the Parties. 

c. The Services provided under this Agreement shall be adequate and 
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner.  

d. The Contractor agrees that it has complied and will continue to comply with 
all Laws while providing Services under this Agreement.  “Laws” means: (i) federal, state, county, 
and local or municipal body or agency laws, statutes, ordinances, and regulations; (ii) any 
licensing, bonding, and permit requirements; (iii) any laws relating to storage, use, or disposal of 
hazardous wastes, substances, or materials; (iv) rules, regulations, ordinances, and/or similar 
directives regarding business permits, certificates, and licenses; (v) regulations and orders 
affecting safety and health, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 
1970; (vi) Wage and Hour laws, Worker Compensation laws, and immigration laws.    

e. The responsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement 
shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent, consultant, sub-
consultant, or employee of the District.  Review, acceptance, or approval by the District of the 
Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor 
of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions, or errors in said Services or documents, nor shall 
it be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement. 

6. MONTHLY STATUS REPORT.  The Contractor shall provide to the District, at 
the District’s request, on or before the 25th of each month, a narrative progress and status report 
describing work in progress and results achieved during the reporting period, including a 
description of the Services performed during the invoice period and the Services anticipated to be 
performed during the ensuing invoice period (“Monthly Report”).  

7. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES. 

a. Compensation.  Compensation for the Services provided under this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement 
and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided in Exhibit A 
of this Agreement, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved in writing by the 

58



0490.4200; 1293772 4

District in advance of incurring such expenses.  Any direct reimbursable costs for materials will 
be reimbursable at the Contractor’s actual cost, provided that the Contractor shall make a 
reasonable attempt to notify the District of the estimated amount of such reimbursable costs (or 
any material adjustments thereto subsequently identified) prior to commencing the requested 
services.  Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the 
District with a current completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification) (“W-9”).  No payments will be made to the Contractor 
until the completed W-9 is provided.  The W-9 shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit B. 

b. Invoices.  Invoices for the Services shall be submitted monthly, by the 10th 
of each month, during the term of this Agreement and shall contain the following information: 

i. An itemized statement of the Services performed. 

ii. Any other reasonable information required by the District to process 
payment of the invoice, including project and/or cost codes as provided in any applicable written 
service/work order. 

The District shall be charged only for the actual time and direct costs 
incurred for the performance of the Services.  Invoices received by the District after the 10th of 
each month may be processed the following month. 

8. TIME FOR PAYMENT.  Payment for the Services shall be made by the District 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of: (i) a timely, satisfactory, and detailed invoice in the form 
required by Section 7; and (ii) if applicable, a reasonably satisfactory and detailed Monthly Report, 
for that portion of the Services performed and not previously billed.  The District may determine 
to waive or extend the deadline for filing the Monthly Report, or may make payment for Services 
to the Contractor notwithstanding a delay in filing the Monthly Report, upon reasonable request 
of the Contractor, if it is in the interest of the District to do so.  In the event a Board meeting is not 
scheduled in time to review payment of an invoice, the Board hereby authorizes payment for 
Services, subject to the appropriation and budget requirements under Section 27 hereof, without 
the need for additional Board approval, so long as any payment required to be made does not 
exceed the amounts appropriated for such Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget.  
Such payment shall require review and approval of each Monthly Report and invoice by two 
officers of the District. 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor is an independent contractor 
and nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees 
or agents as employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor shall have full power and authority 
to select the means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without 
detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own 
employees or subcontractors.  The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained.  The 
District shall not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or 
employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, 
contractors, agents, or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to: 
local, state or federal income, or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes), 

59



0490.4200; 1293772 5

workers’ compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance, 
errors and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions, 
or any other form of taxes, benefits, or insurance.  The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety, 
and the safety of its employees, sub-contractors, agents, and representatives.  All personnel 
furnished by the Contractor will be deemed employees or sub-contractors of the Contractor and 
will not for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the District.  The Contractor is 
not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits, unless 
unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Contractor or some other entity 
other than the District, and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income taxes 
on moneys by it earned pursuant to this Agreement.   

10. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY.  This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws and 
executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-discrimination in employment and the 
Contractor represents and warrants that it will not discriminate in its employment practices in 
violation of any such applicable law or executive order. 

11. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE.   

a. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, 
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth in 
Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  A waiver of subrogation and 
rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents is required for 
Commercial General Liability and workers’ compensation coverage.  The Commercial General 
Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name 
the District as an additional insured.  All coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to any coverage that the 
District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess.  The 
District shall have the right to verify or confirm, at any time, all coverage, information, or 
representations contained in this Agreement. 

b. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
provide the District with a certificate or certificates evidencing the policies required by this 
Agreement, as well as the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage, which 
certificate(s) shall be attached hereto as Exhibit C-1.  If the Contractor subcontracts any portion(s) 
of the Services, said subcontractor(s) shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing statutory 
workers’ compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance, and automobile 
liability insurance in amounts satisfactory to the District and the Contractor; provided, however, 
that sub-contractors of the Contractor shall not be required by the District to provide coverage in 
excess of that which is required hereunder of the Contractor.  If the coverage required expires 
during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide replacement 
certificate(s) evidencing the continuation of the required policies. 

c. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve 
to release it from any obligations contained in this Agreement, nor shall the purchase of the 
required insurance serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision in this Agreement.  
The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies. 

60



0490.4200; 1293772 6

12. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICTS.  

a. Confidentiality.  Any information deemed confidential by the District and 
given to the Contractor by the District, or developed by the Contractor as a result of the 
performance of a particular task, shall remain confidential.  In addition, the Contractor shall hold 
in strict confidence, and shall not use in competition, any information which the Contractor 
becomes aware of under or by virtue of this Agreement which the District deems confidential, or 
which the District has agreed to hold confidential, or which, if revealed to a third party, would 
reasonably be construed to be contrary to the interests of the District.  Confidential information 
shall not include, however, any information which is: (i) generally known to the public at the time 
provided to the Contractor; (ii) provided to the Contractor by a person or entity not bound by 
confidentiality to the District; or (iii) independently developed by the Contractor without use of 
the District’s confidential information.  During the performance of this Agreement, if the 
Contractor is notified that certain information is to be considered confidential, the Contractor 
agrees to enter into a confidentiality agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to the District and 
the Contractor.  The Contractor agrees that any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors with 
access to any information designated thereunder as confidential information of the District shall 
agree to be bound by the terms of such confidentiality agreement. 

b. Personal Identifying Information.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the District may disclose Personal Identifying Information to the Contractor.  
“Personal Identifying Information” means a social security number; a personal identification 
number; a password; a pass code; an official state or government-issued driver’s license or 
identification card number; a government passport number; biometric data, as defined in § 24-73-
103(1)(a), C.R.S.; an employer, student, or military identification number; or a financial 
transaction device, as defined in § 18-5-701(3), C.R.S.  In compliance with § 24-73-102, C.R.S., 
the Contractor agrees to implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices that 
are: (i) appropriate to the nature of the Personal Identifying Information disclosed to the 
Contractor; and (ii) reasonably designed to help protect the Personal Identifying Information from 
unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. 

c. Conflicts.  Prior to the execution of, and during the performance of this 
Agreement and prior to the execution of future agreements with the District, the Contractor agrees 
to notify the District of conflicts known to the Contractor that impact the Contractor’s provision 
of Services to the District.   

13. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all maps, plans, 
drawings, specifications, reports, electronic files, and other documents, in whatever form, shall 
remain the property of the District under all circumstances, upon payment to the Contractor of the 
invoices representing the work by which such materials were produced.  At the District’s request 
the Contractor will provide the District with all documents produced by or on behalf of the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall maintain electronic and reproducible 
copies on file of any such instruments of service involved in the Services for a period of two (2) 
years after termination of this Agreement, shall make them available for the District’s use and shall 
provide such copies to the District upon request at no cost. 

61



0490.4200; 1293772 7

14. LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES.  The Contractor shall not have any right or 
interest in any District assets, or any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this 
Agreement or the performance of the Services contemplated in this Agreement.  The Contractor, 
for itself, hereby waives and releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s, 
materialmen’s, or other such lien claims, or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or 
any improvements thereon in connection with any Services performed under or in connection with 
this Agreement, and the Contractor shall cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers, 
materialmen, and others claiming by, through, or under the Contractor to execute similar waivers 
prior to commencing any work or providing any materials in connection with the Services.  The 
Contractor further agrees to execute a sworn affidavit respecting the payment and lien releases of 
all subcontractors, suppliers, and materialmen, and release of lien respecting the Services at such 
time or times and in such form as may be reasonably requested by the District.  The Contractor 
will provide indemnification against all such liens for labor performed and/or materials supplied 
or used by the Contractor and/or any other person in connection with the Services undertaken by 
the Contractor, in accordance with Section 15, below. 

15. INDEMNIFICATION.   

a. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and 
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants (collectively, the 
“District Indemnitees”), from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, 
lawsuits, damages, and expenses (the “Claims”), including reasonable legal expenses and 
attorneys’ fees actually incurred, by the District Indemnitees arising directly or indirectly, in whole 
or in part, out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious 
act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or employees, in 
connection with this Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement or otherwise to the 
contrary, the Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District Indemnitees for the negligence 
of the District or the negligence of any other District Indemnitee, except the Contractor.  Except 
as otherwise provided by applicable law, this indemnification obligation will not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by 
or for the Contractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit 
acts, provided that in no event shall the Contractor be liable for special/consequential or punitive 
damages. 

b. In the event the Contractor fails to assume the defense of any Claims under 
this Section 15 within fifteen (15) days after notice from the District of the existence of such Claim, 
the District may assume the defense of the Claim with counsel of its own selection, and the 
Contractor will pay all reasonable expenses of such counsel.  Insurance coverage requirements 
specified in this Agreement shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the 
terms of this indemnification obligation.  

c. Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no 
way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation.  
The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary 
with respect to its obligations under this Agreement, including the indemnity obligations set forth 

62



0490.4200; 1293772 8

in Section 15.  This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.   

16. ASSIGNMENT.  The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof, 
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District.  Any attempted 
assignment of this Agreement in whole or in part with respect to which the District has not 
consented, in writing, shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever. 

17. SUB-CONTRACTORS.  The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the 
District for the performance of all Services in accordance with the terms set forth in this 
Agreement, whether performed by the Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor, 
and neither the District’s approval of any subcontractor, suppliers, or materialman, nor the failure 
of performance thereof by such persons or entities, will relieve, release, or affect in any manner 
the Contractor’s duties, liabilities, or obligations under this Agreement .  The Contractor shall not 
subcontract any Services without prior written approval by the District.  The Contractor agrees 
that each and every agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under 
this Agreement shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained in this 
Agreement holding the District harmless for the acts of the subcontractor.  Prior to commencing 
any Services, a subcontractor shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to the District in 
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement.  The Contractor further agrees that all such 
subcontracts shall provide that they may be terminated immediately without cost or penalty upon 
termination of this Agreement, other than payment for services rendered prior to the date of any 
such termination.  

18. TERMINATION.  In addition to the termination provisions contained in Section 2, 
above, this Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the Contractor upon delivery of 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the Contractor 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice.  Each Party may terminate this Agreement for cause at any 
time upon written notice to the other Party setting forth the cause for termination and the notified 
Party’s failure to cure the cause to the reasonable satisfaction of the Party given such notice within 
the cure period set forth in Section 19.  If this Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be 
paid for all the Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including 
reimbursable expenses due.  Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business.  Should 
either Party to this Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or commit a substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other 
Party, said other Party shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under 
this Agreement.  In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate with 
the District to ensure a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the District 
or its designees.  All time, fees, and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed by the 
Contractor to the District.   

19. DEFAULT.  If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms, 
covenants, and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this 
Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the 
default, at the address specified in Section 20 below, and the defaulting party will have ten (10) 
days from and after receipt of the notice to cure the default.  If the default is not of a type which 
can be cured within such ten (10)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the 

63



0490.4200; 1293772 9

non-defaulting party within such ten (10)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a 
cure, the defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default 
following the end of the ten (10)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defaulting party 
is at all times within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure.  If any 
default under this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will, in 
addition to any other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement and 
enforce the defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for injunction 
or specific performance. 

20. NOTICES.  Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must be 
in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service, 
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.  If given by registered or certified mail, 
the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of: (i) actual receipt 
by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent; or (ii) three 
days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage 
prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail.  If personally delivered or sent via nationally 
recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been given and received on 
the first to occur of: (i) one business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized 
overnight air courier service; or (ii) delivery to the party to whom it is addressed.  Any party hereto 
may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto as provided in this Section 20 
of this Agreement, designate additional persons to whom notices or communications will be given, 
and designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or 
communication will be given.  Such notices or communications will be given to the parties at their 
addresses set forth below: 

District: Wheatlands Metropolitan District 
YMCA at Wheatlands  
6100 S. Kewaunee Way 
Aurora, CO 80016  
Attention: Isabell Rodau  
Phone: (720) 524-2763 
Email: irodau@denverymca.org  

  
With a Copy to: WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 

2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000 
Centennial, CO  80122 
Attention: Clint C. Waldron, Esq. 
Phone: (303) 858-1800 
E-mail: cwaldron@wbapc.com 

  
Contractor: Saquimux Services, LLC  

21378 E Randolph Pl.  
Denver, CO 80249 
Attention: Juana Saquimux 
Phone: (720) 877-7951 
Email: asaquimux@hotmail.com  
 

64



0490.4200; 1293772 10

21. AUDITS.  The District shall have the right to audit, with reasonable notice,  any of 
the Contractor’s books and records solely as are necessary to substantiate any invoices and 
payments under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, receipts, time sheets, payroll, and 
personnel records) and the Contractor agrees to maintain adequate books and records for such 
purposes during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after termination of 
this Agreement and to make the same available to the District at all reasonable times and for so 
long thereafter as there may remain any unresolved question or dispute regarding any item 
pertaining thereto.  

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and obligations 
of each to the other as of this date, and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations, 
representations, agreements, or arrangements of any kind with respect to the Services, whether 
written or oral.  Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly set 
forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect.  This Agreement may not be modified except 
by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the District.  

23. BINDING AGREEMENT.  This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

24. NO WAIVER.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such 
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, nor 
shall the waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default. 

25. GOVERNING LAW.   

a. Venue.  Venue for all actions arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
District Court in and for the county in which the District is located.  The Parties expressly and 
irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect venue of any such action, including, 
but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise.  At the District’s request, the Contractor 
shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement during any legal proceedings and 
the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed under this Agreement until and unless 
this Agreement is otherwise terminated.  

b. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall apply to any dispute, without regard to 
conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the State 
of Colorado. 

c. Litigation.  At the District’s request, the Contractor will consent to being 
joined in litigation between the District and third parties, but such consent shall not be construed 
as an admission of fault or liability.  The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays in the 
performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its reasonable control including delays 
caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or other regulatory authority to act 
in a timely manner, or failure of the District to furnish timely information or to approve or 
disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner.  

65



0490.4200; 1293772 11

26. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES.  In the performance of this Agreement, or in 
considering any requested approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time, the Parties agree 
that each will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or 
unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time 
required or requested pursuant to this Agreement. 

27. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET.  The District does 
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation 
whatsoever.  The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under 
this Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by 
the Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, or liability in any ensuing 
fiscal year beyond the then-current fiscal year.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed 
or interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-
fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or statutory 
debt limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the 
Constitution of the State of Colorado.  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge 
or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds.  The District’s obligations under this 
Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall remain subject to the 
same for the entire term of this Agreement. 

28. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 
to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be 
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any 
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or 
available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et 
seq., C.R.S.  

29. NEGOTIATED PROVISIONS.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been 
prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed 
to the preparation of this Agreement. 

30. SEVERABILITY.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of any other portion of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect, the 
intention being that such portions are severable.  In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable 
provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms 
to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, 
valid, and enforceable. 

31. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such Agreement.  It is 
the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving services or benefits 
under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only. 

66



0490.4200; 1293772 12

32. OPEN RECORDS.  The Parties understand that all material provided or produced 
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq., 
C.R.S.  

33. WARRANTY.  The Contractor shall and does by this Agreement guarantee and 
warrant that all workmanship, materials, and equipment furnished, installed, or performed for the 
accomplishment of the Services (collectively, the “Work”) will be of good quality and new, unless 
otherwise required or permitted by this Agreement.  The Contractor further warrants that the Work 
will conform to all requirements of this Agreement and all other applicable laws, ordinances, 
codes, rules, and regulations of any governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work.  
All Services are subject to the satisfaction and acceptance of the District, but payments for the 
completed Work will not constitute final acceptance nor discharge the obligation of the Contractor 
to correct defects at a later date.  Such warranties set forth in this Agreement are in addition to, 
and not in lieu of, any other warranties prescribed by Colorado law. 

34. TAX EXEMPT STATUS.  The District is exempt from Colorado state sales and 
use taxes.  Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any 
invoices submitted to the District.  The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a copy 
of its certificate of tax exemption.  Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the Colorado 
Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exemption Certificate and purchase materials 
tax free.  The Contractor and subcontractors shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to 
apply for Exemption Certificates or for failure to use said certificate. 

35. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a 
PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories 
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules 
of evidence applicable to court proceedings. 

[Signature pages follow] 

67



District’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Clubhouse Cleaning 
Services with Saquimux Services, LLC, dated February 16, 2023 

 
0490.4200; 1293772 13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first 
above written.  By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken all 
necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement. 

DISTRICT: 
WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 

 
Officer of the District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 

 
General Counsel for the District 
 

Brooke Holliman (Feb 17, 2023 17:32 MST)

68



Contractor’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Clubhouse Cleaning 
Services with Wheatlands Metropolitan District, dated February 16, 2023 

 
0490.4200; 1293772 14 

CONTRACTOR: 
SAQUIMUX SERVICES, LLC, a Colorado 
limited liability company 
 

 
 
 
Printed Name 
 
Title 

 
 
STATE OF COLORADO )  
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ______________________ )  

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________ 

2023, by ____________________, as the ____________________ of Saquimux Services, LLC, a 
Colorado limited liability company . 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires:   
  
  
  
 Notary Public 
 

69



0490.4200; 1293772 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES/COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 

Contractor will provide the following cleaning services twice per week on Mondays and 
Thursdays:  The days services are provided may  be changed upon mutual agreement of the Parties.  
 
Main Room – Kitchen – Back Room 

 Clean fingerprints and smudges from all entrance glass doors. 
 Vacuum all carpeted areas using a backpack vacuum. 
 Vacuum or dust mop all hard surface floors. 
 Mop all hard surface floors.  
 Empty all trash and recycling receptacles, replace the liners as needed, and remove trash 

and recycling to a collection point.  
 Use Microfiber cloths to dust horizontal surface of desks, tables, etc. 
 Spot clean horizontal surfaces for removal of spillage, marks, and coffee rings. 
 Clean, disinfect, kitchen countertop, cabinets, tables, and kitchen appliances. 
 Clean, disinfect, and polish all sinks and drinking fountains. 
 Vacuum couches and chairs. 
 Spot clean fingerprints and smudges from partition glass and walls. 

 
Restrooms 

 Empty trash receptacles and wash, if necessary. 
 Disinfect door handles, partition handles, and light switches. 
 Clean and polish all dispensers, mirrors, and fixtures. 
 Clean and disinfect sinks, toilets, toilets seats and urinals. 
 Spot clean and sanitize walls and partitions around toilets and urinals. 
 Restock all paper products and hand soap. 
 Sweep and mop floor with disinfectant. 
 Empty sanitary napkin receptacle and spray with a disinfectant. 

 
Contractor will provide the following additional cleaning services once per month:   
 
Restrooms 

 Clean and sanitize the outside of trash receptacles and dispensers. 
 High dust tops of doors, partitions mirrors, and air vents. 
 Clean and sanitize restroom partitions and walls around toilets and urinals. 

 
Main Room – Kitchen – Back Room 

 Thoroughly dust all vertical surfaces of furniture, including desks, tables, chairs, window 
sills, etc. 

 High dusting of air vents, tops of doors, door frames, ceiling corners, edges, etc. 
 Low dusting of all baseboards and chair legs.  
 Vacuum upholstered furniture to remove dust and lint. 
 Clean spots/smudges from walls, doors, door frames, and light switches. 

70



0490.4200; 1293772 A-2 

 Damp wipe horizontal molding, windowsills, and baseboards. 
 
Contractor will provide all the necessary cleaning chemicals and equipment. The District will 
provide all paper products, hand soap and replacement liners for trash receptacles. 
 
Contractor will perform the cleaning services at a rate of $760.00 per month.  
 
Any additional cleanings of the facility that are requested by the District will be performed for a 
fee of $95.00/cleaning. 

71



0490.4200; 1293772 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

CONTRACTOR’S COMPLETED W-9 

 
 

72



0490.4200; 1293772 C-1

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of 
Section 11 of this Agreement. 
 
1. Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all 

employees of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy 
amounts and coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services 
will be performed. 

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than 
$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability; $2,000,000 
designated location, general aggregate; and $1,000,000 umbrella.  Such insurance will 
include coverage for contractual liability, personal injury, and broad form property 
damage, and shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive basis 
including, but not limited to:   

a. premises operations; 
b. personal injury liability without employment exclusion; 
c. limited contractual; 
d. broad form property damages, including completed operations; 
e. medical payments; 
f. products and completed operations; 
g. independent consultants coverage; and 
h. coverage inclusive of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 

procedures, employed in the capacity of a construction consultant. 
 

This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations 
contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or 
property damage. 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned, and hired 
automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of 
liability of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property 
damage.  This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification 
obligations contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of 
bodily injury or property damage. 

4. If applicable: Contractor shall secure and maintain a third-party fidelity bond in favor of 
the District, covering the Contractor and its employees and agents who may provide or be 
responsible for the provision of Services where such activities contemplate the 
responsibility for money or property of the District.  Such bond shall protect the District 
against any fraudulent or dishonest act which may result in the loss of money, securities, 

73



0490.4200; 1293772 C-2

or other property belonging to or in the possession of the District.  Said bond shall be in an 
amount as determined by the District, from a surety acceptable to the District. 

5. Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

74



0490.4200; 1293772 C-1-1 

EXHIBIT C-1 

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE 

 

75



0490.4200; 1293772 D-1 

EXHIBIT D  

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING WITH COLORADO SECRETARY OF STATE 

 

 

76



1 
0490.4200; 1297856 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(CLUBHOUSE REMODEL SERVICES) 

     
  
 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (the 
“First Amendment”) is entered into as of the 16th day of February 2023, effective as of December 
8, 2022, by and between the WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and LEO 
RENOVATIONS LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (the “Contractor”), collectively 
referred to herein as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an Independent Contractor Agreement (Clubhouse 
Remodel Services), dated December 8, 2022 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement sets forth the scope of services to be completed and the 
compensation schedule therefore; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the scope of services and compensation schedule 
to reflect the removal of sales tax.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 
herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties covenant and agree as follows: 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. AMENDMENT TO SCOPE OF SERVICES/COMPENSATION SCHEDULE. The 
Parties hereby amend and restate in its entirety the Scope of Services/Compensation Schedule set 
forth in Exhibit A of the Agreement with the Scope of Services/Compensation Schedule set forth in 
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference. This First Amendment shall be effective as 
of December 8, 2022.    

 
2. PRIOR PROVISIONS EFFECTIVE.  Except as specifically amended hereby, all the 

terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
3. COUNTERPART EXECUTION.  This First Amendment may be executed in 

several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. Executed copies of this First Amendment may be delivered 
by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding 
upon the signatories to this First Amendment. 

 
[Signature page follows.] 

77



2 
0490.4200; 1297856 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this First Amendment to be duly 
executed and delivered by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date first 
above written. 
 

DISTRICT:  
WHEATLANDS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado 
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
       Officer of the District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
General Counsel to the District 

CONTRACTOR:  
LEO RENOVATIONS LLC, a Colorado 
limited liability company 
 
 

               
             By:        
        Its:        

Brooke Holliman (Feb 17, 2023 17:32 MST)

78



A-1 
0490.4200; 1297856 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES/COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
 

The Scope of Services and Compensation Schedule set forth in the proposal included in this 
Exhibit A. Any changes to the Scope of Services or Compensation Schedule will be authorized 
pursuant to work orders approved and executed by an authorized representative of the District and 
the Contractor.  

79



A-2 
 

80



A-3 
 

81



A-4 
 

82



A-5 
 

 

83



Liz.Wolfman
Text Box
62,939.35

Liz.Wolfman
Text Box
03/06/23

Liz.Wolfman
Image









  

 

WORKING SESSION 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

3/9/2023 

Number of open violations: 74 

Last Inspection dates:  February 17th, 2023 and March 1st, 2023 

 

Next Inspection dates: March 15th, 2023 and April 5th, 2023 

 

Violations by type: 

Basketball Hoops – 0 
Boat- 0 
Business – 0 
Dead Tree Backyard- 0 
Dead Tree Front/Side Yard –19 
Commercial Vehicle- 1 
Common Area Dumping- 0 
Exterior Damage -0 
Fence -Paint/Stain - 2 
Fence Repair – 7 
Holiday Lights- 12 
Inoperable Vehicle- 0 
Items Stored - 1 
Landscape Maint - 2 
Lawn Care -Weeds- 2 
Lawn Care- Watering – 0 
Lawn in need of mowing - 0 

Lawn in Poor Condition – 5 
Livestock- 0 
Maintenance - 1 
Missing Tree Front Yard - 2 
Nusiance - 0 
Paint – 5 
RV/Camper - 0 
Shutters Missing – 1 
Signs- 0 
Trailer - 2 
Trash Cans - 8 
Tree Care- 0 
Tree Under Caliper- 1 
Vehicle Repair -0 
Unauthorized Change - 4 
Unsightly Conditions - 1 
Window Units-  0

Total- 74 

 

 

84



Managed by Advanced Management, LLC Page 1 of 1

OPERATIONS
SUMMARY

Wheatlands Metropolitan District
January 31, 2023 - March 3, 2023

*By Status displays the combined count of all current and past instances for each status assigned during the selected 
time period.

Architectural Control

Request Status:

Correspondence:

Violations

Open:

By Status*:

Report Date:
03/03/2023

.................................................................................................Approved

.................................................................................................Approved With Conditions

.................................................................................................Cancelled

.................................................................................................Completed

.................................................................................................Completed

.................................................................................................Denied

.................................................................................................More Info Requested

.................................................................................................New Request

.................................................................................................Under Review

.................................................................................................Total

.................................................................................................Emails

.................................................................................................US Mails

.................................................................................................Carried Over

.................................................................................................Created

.................................................................................................Total

.................................................................................................1st Notice

.................................................................................................2nd Notice

.................................................................................................3rd Notice

.................................................................................................4th Notice

.................................................................................................6th Notice

.................................................................................................Resolved

.................................................................................................Total

.................................................................................................Average Days To 
Close .................................................................................................Total Fines Assessed

0

9

1

7

26

0

12

63

3

1

43

26.6
$150.00

82

4

2

29

51

134

2

2

0

0

5

85



Payee Description Total Amount
GENERAL FUND PAYMENTS TO BE RATIFIED:
*Aurora Water Water Service 01/05/2023 - 02/03/2023 647.74
*City of Aurora Civil Plans Revision for Soccer Fields 888.00

Civil Plans Revision for Soccer Fields 222.00
*Waste Management (Residential) February 2022 Residential Trash Service 12,722.22
*Wells Fargo Card Services - Business January 2023 Credit Card Charges 1,192.79
*XCEL Energy January 2023 Electric & Gas Utility 299.38
Altitude Community Law P.C. January 2023 Legal Services Provided for Collections 604.00

February 2023 Legal Services for Collections 975.00
American Conservation & Billing Solutions January 2023 Billing Services 3,427.00

February 2023 Billing Services 3,382.00
American Mechanical Services of Denver, L February 2023 HVAC Maintenance 185.00
AMI-Advanced Management, LLC February 2023 Covenant Enforcement 3,605.00
Around the Corner Handyman LLC Check Fireplace and Set Mouse Traps 90.09
Colorado Lighting, Inc. February 2023 Inspection Fees 398.14
Colorado Special Districts Property & Lia Balance Due on Updated 2023 Property & Liability Insurance 6,942.00
Courtesy Plumbing & Heating Installation of New Hot Water Heater at Clubhouse 20,643.00
Cox Professional Landscape Services, LLC Snow Removal Supplies 165.00

January 2023 Snow Removal  & Supplies 285.00
January 2023 Snow Removal  & Supplies 517.50
January 2023 Snow Removal  & Supplies 200.00
January 2023 Snow Removal  & Supplies 3,845.00
January 29, 2023 Snow Removal and Supplies 1,262.50
January 29, 2023 Snow Removal and Supplies 95.00
January 31, 2023 Snow Removal and Supplies 775.00
January 31, 2023 Snow Removal and Supplies 95.00
February 2023 Landscape Maintenance Contract 14,698.50
Janitorial Service for Park Restrooms 270.00
February 2023 Snow Removal Supplies 95.00
February 2023 Snow Removal Supplies 380.00
February  6, 2023 Snow Removal Supplies 705.00
Purchase and Installation of Large Pots a Clubhouse Swimming 
Pool 4,417.00
February 15, 2023 Snow Removal Services 95.00
February 15 & 16, 2023 Snow Removal Services 3,292.50
February  17, 2023 Snow Removal Services 95.00
Wheatlands Park Bathroom Boiler Repairs 2,304.56
February 22, 2023 Snow Removal 95.00
WPRA Feb. 22, 2023 Snow Removal 715.00

Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Payment of Claims

January & February 2023
Month of

86



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Payment of Claims

January & February 2023
Month of

Elevation Consulting Group, LTD Soccer Field Work 9,000.00
Go! Foodservice Purchase of Replacement Clubhouse Pool Furniture 35,022.75
Hillyard, Inc. Janitorial Supplies 297.05

Janitorial Supplies 220.88
IDEA Law Group, LLC January 2023 Litigation Fees 90.00
Marchetti & Weaver, LLC January 2022 Accounting Services 278.25

January 2022 Accounting Services 8,013.91
National Entertainment Technologies, Inc. 2023 Easter Event 440.00
Special District Association 2023 Annual SDA Membership Dues 1,237.50
Spencer Fane LLP January 2023 Legal Services for matters on WPRA 396.00
Veteran Guardians, LLC December 2022 Clubhouse Event Security 257.40

January 2022 Clubhouse Event Security 240.00
January 2023 Clubhouse Event Security 360.00

White Bear Ankele P.C. January 2023 Legal Services for Collections 173.00
January 2023 Legal Services 11,866.21

YMCA of Metropolitan Denver January 2023 Management Services 16,268.95
Zions Bancorporation, NA February 2023 WPRA District Fee 39,729.69

TOTAL TO BE RATIFIED & APPROVED 214,517.51

87



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Net Position January 31, 2023

 General Fund 

 Debt 

Service 

Fund 

 Special 

Revenue ARI 

Fund 

 Special 

Revenue 

Operations 

Fund 

 Special 

Revenue Park 

Fund 

 Fixed Assets 

& LTD  TOTAL 

ASSETS
CASH

CSAFE 1,786,719        1,786,719          
Wells Fargo 458,137           458,137             
Wells Fargo-Merchant Software 271                  271                    
CSB&T - Series 2015 Bond Fund -                       369,023       -                     -                     -                     369,023             
Pooled Cash Allocation (552,452)          29,376         164                 350,556          172,355          -                     

TOTAL CASH 1,692,675        398,399       164                 350,556          172,355          -                 2,614,150          

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Due from County Treasurer -                       -                   -                     -                     
Accounts Receivable -                       -                     14,743            33,172            47,916               
Accounts Receivable - Builder -                       -                     -                     -                     
Accounts Receivable - Other -                       -                     -                     -                     
Property Taxes Receivable 1,830,006        1,275,535    52,621            3,158,162          
Prepaid Expenses -                       -                     5,283              5,283                 

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 1,830,006        1,275,535    52,621            14,743            38,455            -                 3,211,361          

FIXED & OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Construction In Progress 442,406          442,406             
Land -                     -                     
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 5,871,413       5,871,413          
Prepaid Bond Insur-Net of Amortization 165,608          165,608             

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS -                       -                   -                     -                     -                     6,479,428       6,479,428          

TOTAL ASSETS 3,522,681        1,673,935    52,785            365,300          210,811          6,479,428       12,304,938        

LIABILITIES & DEFERED INFLOWS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 63,582             63,582               
Wells Fargo Credit Card 547                  547                    
WPRA Fee Payable -                     -                     
Retainage Payable 80,625            80,625               
Accrued Expenses -                       -                   164                 -                     -                     164                    
Director's Fees Payable -                       -                     
Payroll Liabilities -                       -                     
Century Communities Deposit -                     -                     
Prepaid Fees 13,416            30,185            43,601               

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 64,129             -                   164                 13,416            110,811          -                 188,519             

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred Property Taxes 1,830,006        1,275,535    52,621            -                     -                     3,158,162          

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 1,830,006        1,275,535    52,621            -                     -                     -                 3,158,162          

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued Interest 79,298            79,298               
Bank Loan Payable -                     -                     
Bonds Payable - Series 2015 22,660,000     22,660,000        
Bond Premium, Net of Amortization 309,984          309,984             

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES -                       -                   -                     -                     -                     23,049,282     23,049,282        

TOTAL LIAB & DEF INFLOWS 1,894,135        1,275,535    52,785            13,416            110,811          23,049,282     26,395,964        

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,313,820       6,313,820          
Amount to be Provided for Debt (22,883,675)   (22,883,675)       
Nonspendable -                       5,283              5,283                 
Restricted For Debt 398,399       -                     398,399             
Restricted For Emergencies 60,800             700                 20,883            82,383               
Restricted For ARI -                     -                     
Assigned for Capital Replacements 780,000           780,000             
Assigned for Next Year Budget Deficit -                       -                     
Unassigned 787,746           351,184          73,834            1,212,764          

TOTAL NET POSITION 1,628,546        398,399       -                     351,884          100,000          (16,569,855)   (14,091,026)       
= = = = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 1

88



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

PROPERTY TAXES

Assessed Valuation 47,276,236  45,956,955  -                   45,956,955  

Mill Levy
   General Fund 36.602         39.820         (3)                 36.602         
   Debt Service Fund 27.755         27.755         -                   27.755         
   SARIA Fund 1.110           1.145           (0)                 1.110           

      Total mill levy 65.467         68.720         (3)                 65.467         
Property Taxes Levied
   General Fund 1,730,405    1,830,006    (147,889)      1,682,116    
   Debt Service Fund 1,312,152    1,275,535    -                   1,275,535    
   SARIA Fund 52,477         52,621         (1,608)          51,012         

3,095,033    3,158,162    (149,498)      3,008,664    
Less Provision For Uncollectible
   General Fund -                   -                   -                   
   Debt Service Fund -                   -                   -                   
   SARIA Fund -                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   
Budgeted Property Taxes
   General Fund 1,730,405    1,830,006    1,682,116    
   Debt Service Fund 1,312,152    1,275,535    1,275,535    
   SARIA Fund 52,477         52,621         51,012         

3,095,033    3,158,162    -                   3,008,664    

BUILDOUT & SALES
Vacant Lots

Beginning of Period
New
Sold / Now a Residential Unit Richmond
Sold / Now a Residential Unit Elacora
End of Period -                   -                   

Residential Units
Beginning of Period 1,053           1,053           -                   1,053           
New - Richmond -                   -                   -                   -                   
New - Elacora -                   -                   -                   -                   
New - Lokal (31 bldgs./93 units planned) -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other -                   -                   -                   -                   
End of Period 1,053           1,053           -                   1,053           

Apartments
Beginning of Period 338              338              -                   338              
Additions -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other -                   -                   -                   -                   
End of Period 338              338              338              

Sales
First time sales -                   -                   -                   
Re-sale 60                60                60                

60                60                60                

FEES
Operations Fee - Monthly / Unit

Houses 20.00$         20.00$         
Apartments -$             -$             

Park Fee - Monthly / Unit
Houses 45.00$         45.00$         
Apartments 20.00$         20.00$         

WPRA Fee
Membership 30.00$         32.73$         
Debt Reserve 5.00$           5.00$           

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 2

89



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

COMBINED FUNDS

REVENUE
Property Taxes 3,095,033    3,158,162    -                   3,158,162    -                   -                   -                   
Specific Ownership Taxes 195,395       190,907       -                   190,907       -                   -                   -                   
Interest & other income 72,308         9,000           89,000         98,000         8,630           253              8,377           
Operations fees 253,180       252,720       -                   252,720       21,060         21,060         -                   
Fines & penalties 36,753         23,350         -                   23,350         178              1,946           (1,768)          
Working capital fees 8,850           9,000           -                   9,000           450              150              300              
Design review -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Clubhouse rental fees 30,755         25,000         -                   25,000         2,130           503              1,627           
Park fees 649,890       649,740       -                   649,740       54,145         54,145         -                   
Bond/Loan proceeds -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other Income 20,442         8,500           (2,500)          6,000           1,555           -                   1,555           
Sale of Assets -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL REVENUE 4,362,607    4,326,379    86,500         4,412,879    88,148         78,057         10,091         

= = = = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 3

90



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

COMBINED FUNDS (Continued)
EXPENDITURES
General Operating:

Accounting - contract 81,670         92,600         -                   92,600         7,715           7,717           2                  
Accounting - special projects 20,539         15,600         -                   15,600         278              1,600           1,322           
Audit 5,000           5,800           -                   5,800           -                   -                   -                   
County Treasurer's fees 46,438         47,372         -                   47,372         -                   -                   -                   
Director's fees 7,105           12,000         -                   12,000         -                   -                   -                   
Director expenses & equipment 1,254           2,500           -                   2,500           -                   -                   -                   
Election 33,703         35,000         33,000         2,000           650              8,750           8,100           
Insurance & bonds 38,847         44,700         (9,123)          53,823         53,823         44,700         (9,123)          
Legal - contract 91,186         99,500         -                   99,500         7,636           8,292           656              
Legal - special projects 30,751         19,600         -                   19,600         3,760           1,633           (2,127)          
Bank Charges 3,194           4,200           -                   4,200           330              350              20                
Miscellaneous 117              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Contingency -                   32,500         2,500           30,000         -                   -                   -                   
Website 616              1,000           -                   1,000           -                   500              500              

Debt Service:
Interest 968,981       951,581       -                   951,581       -                   -                   -                   
Principal 435,000       450,000       -                   450,000       -                   -                   -                   
Paying agent / trustee fees / legal 1,000           1,000           -                   1,000           -                   -                   -                   
Bond/Loan issuance expense -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Contingency -                   5,000           5,000           -                   -                   -                   -                   

Community Operations
Design review -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Facilities mgmt. & billing - Contract 113,914       134,300       -                   134,300       10,440         11,188         748              
Facilities mgmt. & billing - Spec Projects -                   15,000         -                   15,000         -                   1,250           1,250           
Covenant Enforcement 44,222         48,000         -                   48,000         3,605           4,000           395              
Legal - collections 12,021         12,000         -                   12,000         598              1,000           402              
Trash removal-residential pickup 151,117       166,900       -                   166,900       12,710         13,908         1,198           
Community Activities / Christmas Lights 39,963         22,900         -                   22,900         731              45                (686)             
Landscaping 249,497       334,900       -                   334,900       14,699         15,967         1,268           
WPRA Support 222,626       166,500       -                   166,500       9,133           11,820         2,688           
Snow removal 3,936           17,600         -                   17,600         5,880           3,520           (2,360)          
Clubhouse repairs and maintenance 119,989       123,703       -                   123,703       17,627         9,767           (7,860)          
Sport Fields 327,378       50,000         -                   50,000         888              -                   (888)             
Grounds maintenance 75,236         94,900         -                   94,900         2,077           7,908           5,831           
Pool operations 171,127       208,938       (14,375)        223,313       48,225         41,038         (7,186)          
Utilities 207,363       278,100       -                   278,100       648              2,652           2,004           
Transfer to SARIA Authority 51,689         51,831         -                   51,831         -                   -                   -                   
Capital outlay -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Proposed facilities - Project costs 1,792,807    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
WPRA fee 468,106       489,645       -                   489,645       39,730         40,804         1,074           
Contingency -                   169,300       -                   169,300       -                   12,917         12,917         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,816,393    4,204,471    17,002         4,187,469    241,180       251,325       10,145         

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,453,787)   121,908       103,502       225,410       (153,033)      (173,268)      20,236         

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,085,648    1,859,740    772,122       2,631,861    2,631,861    1,859,740    772,122       

ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,631,861    1,981,648    875,624       2,857,272    2,478,829    1,686,471    792,358       

= = = = = = =
-                   

COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 8,362           46,935         14,862         61,797         5,283           
Restricted - TABOR emergency reserve 130,728       88,483         2,300           90,783         82,383         
Restricted - Debt Covenants 397,102       320,827       24,628         345,455       398,399       
Restricted - SARIA Projects -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Assigned - Next Years Budget Deficit 531,800       -                   -                   -                   -                   
Assigned - Capital Improv/Replacement 930,000       390,000       850,000       1,240,000    780,000       
Assigned - Parks & Operations 414,547       347,321       (12,097)        335,224       425,018       
Unassigned 219,322       788,082       (4,070)          784,012       787,746       

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,631,861    1,981,648    875,624       2,857,271    2,478,829    

= = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 4

91



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

GENERAL FUND

REVENUE
Property taxes 1,730,405    1,830,006    -                   1,830,006    -                   -                   -                   
Abatements -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Specific ownership taxes 111,128       114,375       -                   114,375       -                   -                   -                   
Interest income 57,652         3,000           77,000         80,000         7,333           250              7,083           
Other income 2,110           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL REVENUE 1,901,295    1,947,381    77,000         2,024,381    7,333           250              7,083           

EXPENDITURES
Accounting - contract 65,256         74,100         -                   74,100         6,172           6,175           3                  
Accounting - special projects 16,449         12,000         -                   12,000         223              1,000           777              
Audit 5,000           5,800           -                   5,800           -                   -                   -                   
County treasurer's fees 25,963         27,450         -                   27,450         -                   -                   -                   
Director's fees 7,105           12,000         -                   12,000         -                   -                   -                   
Director expenses and equipment 1,254           2,500           -                   2,500           -                   -                   -                   
Election 33,703         35,000         33,000         2,000           650              8,750           8,100           
Insurance & bonds 5,659           6,500           1,836           4,664           4,664           6,500           1,836           
Legal - contract 65,142         73,300         -                   73,300         5,151           6,108           957              
Legal - special projects 1,176           5,000           -                   5,000           -                   417              417              
Bank Charges 27                500              -                   500              -                   42                42                
Miscellaneous 117              -                   -                   -                   -                   
Contingency -                   30,000         -                   30,000         -                   -                   -                   
Website 616              1,000           -                   1,000           -                   500              500              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 227,468       285,150       34,836         250,314       16,859         29,492         12,632         

Excess Revenue Over Expenditures 1,673,827    1,662,231    111,836       1,774,067    (9,527)          (29,242)        19,715         

OTHER SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (To)/From Debt Service Fund -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Transfers (To)/From SARIA Fund -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Transfers (To)/From Operations Fund -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Transfers (To)/From Park Fund (3,126,333)   (1,441,296)   (25,334)        (1,466,630)   (144,200)      (142,424)      (1,776)          

Total Other Sources / (Uses) (3,126,333)   (1,441,296)   (25,334)        (1,466,630)   (144,200)      (142,424)      (1,776)          

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,452,507)   220,935       86,502         307,437       (153,727)      (171,665)      17,939         

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,234,779    1,022,472    759,800       1,782,272    1,782,272    1,022,472    759,800       

ENDING FUND BALANCE 1,782,272    1,243,407    846,302       2,089,709    1,628,546    850,806       777,739       

= = = = = =
COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable 450              6,825           (1,928)          4,897           -                   
Restricted - TABOR emergency reserve 100,700       58,500         2,300           60,800         60,800         
Assigned - Capital Improv/Replacement 930,000       390,000       850,000       1,240,000    780,000       
Assigned - Next Years Budget Deficit 531,800       -                   -                   -                   -                   
Restricted - Debt Covenants -                   -                   -                   -                   
Unassigned 219,322       788,082       (4,070)          784,012       787,746       

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 1,782,272    1,243,407    846,302       2,089,709    1,628,546    

= = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 5

92



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

DEBT SERVICE FUND

REVENUE
Property taxes 1,312,152    1,275,535    -                   1,275,535    -                   -                   -                   
Abatements -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Specific ownership taxes 84,267         76,532         -                   76,532         -                   -                   -                   
Interest income 14,656         6,000           12,000         18,000         1,297           3                  1,294           

TOTAL REVENUE 1,411,076    1,358,067    12,000         1,370,067    1,297           3                  1,294           

EXPENDITURES
Accounting - Special Projects -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Legal -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Treasurer's fees 19,688         19,133         -                   19,133         -                   -                   -                   
Bond interest - Series 2015 968,981       951,581       -                   951,581       -                   -                   -                   
Bond principal - Series 2015 435,000       450,000       -                   450,000       -                   -                   -                   
Bond interest - Series 2005 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Bond principal - Series 2005 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Bond interest - Series 2008 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Bond principal - Series 2008 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Paying agent / trustee fees 1,000           1,000           -                   1,000           -                   -                   -                   
Contingency 5,000           5,000           -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,424,669    1,426,714    5,000           1,421,714    -                   -                   -                   

Excess Revenue Over Expenditures (13,593)        (68,647)        17,000         (51,647)        1,297           3                  1,294           

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Transfers (To)/From Other Funds -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Bond proceeds -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Bond premium -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Other Sources / (Uses) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (13,593)        (68,647)        17,000         (51,647)        1,297           3                  1,294           

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 410,695       389,474       7,628           397,102       397,102       389,474       7,628           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 397,102       320,827       24,628         345,455       398,399       389,477       8,922           

= = = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 6

93



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

SARIA FUND

REVENUE
Property taxes 52,477         52,621         -                   52,621         -                   -                   -                   
Abatements -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Specific Ownership Tax -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Interest income -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other income -                   2,500           (2,500)          -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL REVENUE 52,477         55,121         (2,500)          52,621         -                   -                   -                   

EXPENDITURES
Legal - contract -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Legal - special projects -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital outlay District ARI Improvements -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Contribution to SARIA Authority 51,689         51,831         -                   51,831         -                   -                   -                   
Treasurer's fee 787              789              -                   789              -                   -                   -                   
Contingency 2,500           2,500           -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 52,477         55,121         2,500           52,621         -                   -                   -                   

Excess Revenue Over Expenditures -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Transfers (To)/From other Funds -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Other Sources / (Uses) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

= = = = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 7

94



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

OPERATIONS FUND

REVENUE
Operations Fees - Houses 253,180       252,720       -                   252,720       21,060         21,060         -                   
Warning letter fees -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Working capital fees 2,950           3,000           -                   3,000           150              50                100              
Late charges and collection fees 5,685           7,000           -                   7,000           392              583              (191)             
Legal - collections 4,416           3,500           -                   3,500           (361)             292              (652)             
Design review -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Violations / Fines 3,925           3,500           -                   3,500           75                292              (217)             
Interest income -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Other income -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL REVENUE 270,156       269,720       -                   269,720       21,317         22,277         (960)             

EXPENDITURES
Accounting - Contract - O&M 4,078           4,600           -                   4,600           386              383              (2)                 
Accounting - Spec Projects - O&M 1,023           800              -                   800              14                133              119              
Design review -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Covenant Compliance 44,222         48,000         -                   48,000         3,605           4,000           395              
Facilities Management - Contract 22,146         25,900         -                   25,900         2,158           2,158           0                  
Facilities Management - Spec Projects -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Billing Service - Late Charges & Collections 1,122           2,500           -                   2,500           82                208              127              
Billing Service - Base Rate 11,675         12,900         -                   12,900         973              1,075           102              
Legal - Contract 13,022         13,400         -                   13,400         1,030           1,117           86                
Legal - spec projects 2,674           2,600           -                   2,600           302              217              (85)               
Legal - collections 5,561           7,000           -                   7,000           511              583              72                
Bank Charges 1,204           1,200           -                   1,200           149              100              (49)               
Trash removal - Residential 151,117       166,900       -                   166,900       12,710         13,908         1,198           
Contingency 14,300         -                   14,300         -                   -                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 257,843       300,100       -                   300,100       21,920         23,883         1,963           

Excess Revenue Over Expenditures 12,313         (30,380)        -                   (30,380)        (603)             (1,606)          1,003           

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Transfers (To)/From other Funds -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Other Sources / (Uses) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 12,313         (30,380)        -                   (30,380)        (603)             (1,606)          1,003           

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 340,174       347,794       4,693           352,487       352,487       347,794       4,693           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 352,487       317,414       4,693           322,107       351,884       346,188       5,696           

= = = = = =
COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable -                   -                   -                   -                   
Restricted - TABOR emergency reserve 8,200           9,100           -                   9,100           700              
Assigned - Future Operations 344,287       308,314       4,693           313,007       351,184       

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 352,487       317,414       4,693           322,107       351,884       

= = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 8

95



Wheatlands Metropolitan District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & 
Changes In Fund Balance

Modified 
Accrual Print Date: 3/2/2023

For the Period Indicated
2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance

Prelim Adopted Positive 2023 01/31/23 01/31/23 Positive
Actual Budget (Neg) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative)

PARK FUND
REVENUE

Working capital fees 5,900           6,000           -                   6,000           300              100              200              
Clubhouse rental fees 30,755         25,000         -                   25,000         2,130           503              1,627           
Late charges and collection fees 12,790         5,600           -                   5,600           883              467              416              
Legal - collection fees 9,937           3,750           -                   3,750           (812)             313              (1,124)          
Park fees - Builders - Lots -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Park fees - Residential Units 568,770       568,620       -                   568,620       47,385         47,385         -                   
Park fees - Apartment Units 81,120         81,120         -                   81,120         6,760           6,760           -                   
Grant 5,649           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Interest income -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Sport Field Program Revenue -                   
Other income 12,682         6,000           -                   6,000           1,555           -                   1,555           

TOTAL REVENUE 727,604       696,090       -                   696,090       58,201         55,527         2,674           

EXPENDITURES
Accounting - Contract 12,336         13,900         -                   13,900         1,157           1,158           1                  
Accounting - Special Projects 3,068           2,800           -                   2,800           42                467              425              
Facilities Management - Contract 50,179         58,300         -                   58,300         4,855           4,855           (0)                 
Facilities Management - Spec Projects -                   15,000         -                   15,000         -                   1,250           1,250           
Billing Service - Late Charges & Collections 2,523           5,600           -                   5,600           183              467              283              
Billing Service - Base Rate 26,269         29,100         -                   29,100         2,189           2,425           236              
Community Activities / Christmas Lights 39,963         22,900         -                   22,900         731              45                (686)             
Insurance 33,187         38,200         (10,959)        49,159         49,159         38,200         (10,959)        
Legal - Contract 13,022         12,800         -                   12,800         1,455           1,067           (388)             
Legal - Special Projects 26,901         12,000         -                   12,000         3,458           1,000           (2,458)          
Legal - Collections 6,460           5,000           -                   5,000           87                417              330              
Bank Charges 1,963           2,500           -                   2,500           180              208              28                
Proposed Facility & Project Planning -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Park - Project Costs 1,792,807    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Sport Field Improvements 327,378       50,000         -                   50,000         888              -                   (888)             
Sport Field Program Expenses -                   -                   -                   
Irrigation Repairs & Improvements 45,852         43,300         -                   43,300         -                   -                   -                   
Landscape Maintenance Contract - WMD 164,945       191,600       -                   191,600       14,699         15,967         1,268           
Landscape Improvements - WMD 38,700         100,000       -                   100,000       -                   -                   -                   
Snow Removal 3,936           17,600         -                   17,600         5,880           3,520           (2,360)          
Clubhouse Repairs and Maintenance 119,989       117,203       -                   117,203       17,627         9,767           (7,860)          
Parking Lot Maintenance -                   6,500           -                   6,500           -                   -                   -                   
Grounds Maintenance 56,135         86,000         -                   86,000         1,774           7,167           5,393           
Chemicals & Supplies 8,269           13,000         -                   13,000         -                   -                   -                   
Contract / Lifeguards 142,500       159,338       -                   159,338       13,202         13,037         (165)             
Equipment Repairs & Replacement 20,357         36,600         (14,375)        50,975         35,023         28,002         (7,021)          
Gas and Electric 28,917         28,100         -                   28,100         -                   1,661           1,661           
Telephone/ WiFi / Cable -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Water and Sewer 178,446       250,000       -                   250,000       648              991              344              
Trash Removal - Clubhouse/Non-Res -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
WPRA Fee 468,106       489,645       -                   489,645       39,730         40,804         1,074           
Community Park Maintenance 19,101         8,900           -                   8,900           304              742              438              
WPRA Support 222,626       166,500       -                   166,500       9,133           11,820         2,688           
Property Acquisition/Improvements -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Contingency 155,000       -                   155,000       12,917         12,917         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,853,937    2,137,386    (25,334)        2,162,720    202,401       197,951       (4,450)          

Excess Revenue Over Expenditures (3,126,333)   (1,441,296)   (25,334)        (1,466,630)   (144,200)      (142,424)      (1,776)          

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Transfers (To)/From other Funds 3,126,333    1,441,296    25,334         1,466,630    144,200       142,424       1,776           
Loan issuance -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Proceeds from Sale of Land -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Other Sources / (Uses) 3,126,333    1,441,296    25,334         1,466,630    144,200       142,424       1,776           

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (0)                 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 100,000       100,000       -                   100,000       100,000       100,000       -                   

ENDING FUND BALANCE 100,000       100,000       -                   100,000       100,000       100,000       (0)                 

= = = = = = =
COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable 7,912           40,110         16,790         56,900         5,283           
Restricted - TABOR  emergency reserve 21,828         20,883         -               20,883         20,883         
Restricted - Replacement reserve -                   -                   -               -                   
Restricted - Loan reserve & Surplus -                   -                   -               -                   
Assigned for Parks 70,260         39,007         (16,790)        22,217         73,834         

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 100,000       100,000       -               100,000       100,000       

= = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 9

96



 

 Page 1 

Landscape Monthly Status Report 
Project Name Reporting Cadence 

Wheatlands Metropolitan District Monthly (for Board Meetings) 

Date Prepared by: 

February 2023 Kevin Cox 

 

III. Lawn Care - Provide updates regarding Mowing/Edging, Fertilization, Weed, Disease and Pest Control – all items listed in contract.  
Update on any changes, overall maintenance, status and any concerns to be shared with the Board. 

-All services completed for the season. 

IV. Shrubs/Plants - Provide update regarding Edging, Pruning, Weed, Disease and Pest Control – all items listed in contract.  Update on 
any changes, overall maintenance, status and any concerns to be shared with the Board. 

-All services completed for the season. 

V. Tree Care - Provide update regarding Pruning, Staking, Insect Control, Tree Wells – all items listed in contract.  Update on any changes, 
overall maintenance, status and any concerns to be shared with the Board. 

-Protective tree wrap on new trees installed. 

-Watering bag on new trees installed. 

Misc items as listed in Contract – Provide update on any changes, overall maintenance, status and any concerns to be shared with the 
Board. 

-Weekly checking and replacement of trash and dog waste bags with Wheatlands Park being checked 3 times per week. 

-Park bathroom freeze damage from negative degree temps.  The heater in the ground appeared to be working.  Back up space heater 
over heated and shut down.  Repairs made and invoiced to the District. 

-Detention pond inlet/outlet cleaning delayed due to snow and ground conditions. 

VI. Wood and Rock Mulched Areas-  

-Repairs from snow removal will be ongoing through the spring. 

VII. Native Areas-  

-Trash removed. 

VII. Irrigation Systems-  

-System Winterized. 

-All services completed for the season. 

IX. Landscape Debris Cleanup-  

-Complete. 

X. Aeration-  

-Fall aeration scheduled completed. 

XI. Winter Services-  

-Snow removal services completed on- 11/15; 11/18; 11/29; 12/13; 12/22; 12/29; 1/02; 1/18-1/20; 1/21; 1/29; 1/31; 2/15, 2/16;  

 

97



 

 Page 2 

XII. Bio Hazards-  

XIII. Damages-  

Misc Items –  

Estimates-  

Special Projects (provide an update to any special funding approved by the Board and their status) 

 
Project Date Status 

Pool bench area in front 
of AC unit in process.  
Waiting for bench itself. 
 
Estimate #1657 
Installation of wooden 
fence around AC unit in 
pool deck scheduled. 
 
Estimate # 1596 Rock 
removed from Pool deck 
area and pavers 
installed.  This project is 
complete. 

Installed-December 
 
 
 
Completed-December 
 
 
 
 
Complete in late 
October 

Completed 
 
 
 
Completed- waiting for warm weather in order to paint fence.  
 
 
 
 
Complete 

Warranty plants at 
monuments due to 
Lesanne finding some 
missing plants from our 
warranty planting last 
month. 

Spring 2023 Working with Lesanne.  Some plants are not available and getting substitution ideas 
from her.  Spring completion is expected and we will work with Lesanne. 

Estimate #1558.  
Planting of grasses and 
shrubs at the clubhouse 
entrance scheduled for 
end of November.  
Plants have been 
procured. 

Late November 2022 
 

Scheduled and plants obtained. Looking at later in February provided weather is 
conducive.  
 

Estimate #1727. 
3 large pots to be 
purchased and installed 
by air conditioning 
fence. Lifeguards to 
water flowers.  
 
 

Late April Estimate to be approved and order placed.  

General Comments 

 

 Pots for around the a./c. fencing are waiting to be ordered once payment is received (Invoice #34382). Scheduled delivery 4-6 
weeks once order is placed.  

98



 

 Page 2 

 Annual flower order has been placed- invoice #34299 (includes soil, prep for flower beds). Beds need to be rejuvenated every 
year in order to maintain vibrancy of annual plantings.  
 

 Replacement of perennial plantings at monuments (as per Leasanne Dominguez) due to be begin as son as (a) nurseries begin 
stocking with plant material and again and (b) weather stabilizes. 
 
 

 Estimate # 1719 (tree damaged due to resident accident) due to be planted once material is available from nursery (anticipated 
4 weeks). No charge on this estimate due to over-charge on Invoice #33662 
 

 Tree well/mulch bed replenishments due to be completed once weather stabilizes. Currently on schedule for next 4-6 weeks.  

99



 

2023 March Agenda 

District Business 

• Water heater replacement installed 2/13 
• Heater in pump room installed 2/15 
• Park Bathroom update – up and running (Kevin will provide more details) 
• Hacked tree by resident near 6557 S. Kewaunee Way – police report filed.  Emailed the resident, but no 

response.  AMI is working on putting together a letter to send to the resident 
• Kitchen and bathroom project – completed 3/3/23 
• Pool deck furniture – waiting for delivery date 
• Clubhouse Parking lot resurfacing – aiming for week of Spring Break  
• Water meter – work began 2/28/23 
• Urban Soccer Field – update and sponsorships 
• Authority Update –  

Event Recap 

• February – no events due to kitchen and bathroom renovation 

Upcoming Events  

• March 11th– Bunco Night (Exit Realty sponsoring prizes) at Clubhouse  
• April 8th – Wheatlands Easter Event with 2 face painters, Animal Safari, Easter craft, Easter Eggs Hunt 

and breakfast food truck and hot beverage tent sponsored by 1320 Homes Real Estate at Clubhouse  
• April 21st –Poker Night at Clubhouse (Exit Realty sponsoring prizes) 
• April 29th- Healthy Kids Day at the Aurora YMCA at Wheatlands  
• April 30th or May 13th?- Park Grand Opening Event (depending on the basketball courts) 
• May 18th – Food Truck Night with Magician  
• June 16-17th – Neighborhood Garage Sale 
• June 17th – Welcome back to summer Event (maybe with Animal Safari) 
• June 22nd – Food Truck Night with Madonna Band 
• June 24th – possible Shred and Dumpster Day  
• July 4th Celebration 11-2pm 
• July 20th – Food Truck Night with ? 
• August 17th – Food Truck Night with Magician  

 
 

100



REV. 219329

7

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

101



REV. 219329

1
0

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

102



REV. 219329

1
1

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

103



1
4 REV. 219329

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

104



REV. 219329

1
6

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

105



REV. 219329

1
7

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

106



REV. 219329

1
8

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

107



REV. 219329

2
0

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

108



REV. 219329

2
2

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

109



REV. 219329

2
7

R
EV

IS
ED

 O
N

 0
3/

06
/2

02
3

110



Ad & 
Marketing
Campaign
Overview
February 2023

111



AD SYNOPSIS

February 2023

• Ad spend: ~$37K

• MOTUS/Vi – display, social, search (~$19K)

• CBS4 – TV, digital (~11K + $7K)

• Impressions: ~2.1M

• 395K – social

• 1.4M – TV & 181K Paramount OTT

• 214K – display

• 57K – CTV

• 16K – search non-grant (9K grant account)

• Website Traffic (page views):

• /join: 8,608 (11,900)

• /trial-pass+ guest pass: 6,629** 
(2,257-formerly guest pass)

• /summer-day-camp: 11,415 (11,720)

Expectations for March 2023:
1. Ad spend for March will highlight Trial Pass & limited camp.
2. New partnership with iHeart - podcast will have dual focus on Trial Pass + 
Camp (started 2/28).
3. Facebook Leads (directly into Salesforce) began in February at U Hills and 
will be implemented for all center pages in March.

Observations compared to January 2023:
Web traffic
⬆to Trial Pass/Guest Pass 6,229 (2,257)
⬇ # of new users 38,309 (49,887) but exceeded KPI for month

Clicks
⬇ on Meta 8,396 (12,067)
⬇ on Paid Search 1,772 (2,118)
⬇ on Grant Search 1,354 (1,917)
⬆ on Display 2,559 (1,981)

CTR (click thru rate)
⬇ on Meta 2.08 (2.92%)
⬇ on Paid Search 11.27% (14.16%)
⬆ on Grant Search 15.09% (14.37%)
⬆ on Display 1.20 (1.10%)

CPC (cost per click)
⬆ on Meta $0.79 ($0.54)
⬇ on Paid Search $1.10 ($1.17)
⬆ on Grant Search $4.35 ($4.21)

⬇ on Display $1.76 ($1.92) 

CTV (Connected TV)
⬇ on video starts 57,514 (73,791)

⬇ on video completes 56,842 (72,542)
Cost per completion was the same ($0.02) as January

Integrated Guest/Trial Pass page into Salesforce on 2/1. Jump from 

~40 pageviews first half of month to 848 pageviews on 2/17 with ad 

campaign update.

112



*includes data on 342 of 418 joins by lead.113



*includes data on 698 of 776 leads
114



While leads were 
down from Jan 2023, 

Feb 2023 leads are 
second highest since 

reporting began

115



Summer Camp Post Card –
dropped week of Feb. 13

116



Display ads
(multiple sizes)

117



Social ads

118



CBS4 ads

:15 commercial (TV & CCTV)

Elevator

119

https://www.dropbox.com/s/6e5pl59ylj896hm/YMCA%20Summer%20Camp_15.mp4?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/a12p815oduzurwq/YMCA%20Outside%20The%20Box%20Elevator%20R6.mp4?dl=0


Membership -
3 Day Trial Pass creative (display)
for late Feb into March

120



Membership -
3 Day Trial Pass creative (social-photo carousel)
for late Feb into March

121



Reference:

• 2023 February Monthly Lead-Member Report

• LEAD SOURCE GRAPHS.xlsx

• MOTUS/Vi Acquire February 2023 Report (pending detailed Meta reporting)

122

https://denverymca-my.sharepoint.com/:x:/g/personal/cmorlan_denverymca_org/Eay1Ysm5cVBDueKo6e9HCcUBf7N0rnxI6QS_S5_1xaIl6g?e=xUEyBx
https://denverymca-my.sharepoint.com/:x:/g/personal/cmorlan_denverymca_org/ERSniW21fz9NmmMP6njDXeABpUnJU5xhfyJ1lWdTMiL9uA?e=rQf8uw
https://www.dropbox.com/s/vfwrgev8cavnogy/2February%202023%20-%20YMCA%20Denver%20Performance%20Review.pptx.pdf?dl=0


MOTUS reports

123



124



125



126



127



OWNED 
CHANNELS

128



Website Traffic Snapshot
Traffic and Engagement February YOY

129



Website Traffic Snapshot

Top 10 Pages - February

1. Schedules
2. Fitness Class Reservations
3. Summer Day Camp
4. Home Page
5. U Hills Fitness Schedule
6. Join
7. My Account
8. Arvada Fitness Schedule
9. Swim Schedule
10. Youth Sports

33.88%

24.56%

6.16%

4.77%

1.63%

28.99%

Traffic by Channel

Organic Search

Direct

Referral

Paid Search

Social

Other

130



Y360 Recap
Device December January February
Desktop 64% 33% 23%
Mobile 32% 67% 76%

Activity January February
Total Members 178 44
Total Visits 962 974
Total Plays 232 162

131



Y360 Recap

132



Engagement Overview

• News Coverage:
• Articles: 4 | All coverage here.

• 9 News story on 4abilities & EGYM and Colorado 
Matters radio story about William

• Denver Y Mobile App:
• # of pushes: 30

• Recipients: ~12,000/per push

133

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1_bJZG3XQ72BTJdgWgFPQXtNyygtKnTkz/edit?usp=sharing&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://www.9news.com/video/news/local/next/next-with-kyle-clark/nonprofit-empowers-people-of-all-abilities-to-get-active-and-independent/73-92f99577-0aaa-4a4b-bbfb-5fcf730a8621
https://www.cpr.org/show-episode/feb-23-2023-the-legacy-of-william-richardson-on-and-off-the-baseball-field/
https://www.cpr.org/show-episode/feb-23-2023-the-legacy-of-william-richardson-on-and-off-the-baseball-field/


Email Campaigns Overview
Comparison is made to Jan. 2023 stats

Emails Recipients Average 
Clicks

Average 
Mailing 
Score 
(out of 10)

Average Opens Total Opt-
outs

19 ~ 25,000+

a week
6.08%

⬇️ from 7.3%

8.66

⬇️ from 
8.9

48.88%

⬇️ from 50.35%

4.47 
(Average per email)

⬇️ from 5.18

134



Top February Posts by Channel - Facebook 

135



Top February Posts by Channel – Instagram

136



Top February Posts by Channel – Tik Tok

137



Top February Posts by Channel – LinkedIn

138



Social Media Feb. Overview – All Channels

Channel Number of 

Posts

Impressions Engagements Engagement 

Rate

Net 

Audience

Facebook 214
⬆ 23

411,494
⬇ 14.4%

89,688
⬇ 6.9%

21.8%
⬆ 8.8%

10,327
⬆ 4

Instagram 17
⬆ 14

5,769
⬆ 100.9%

294
⬆ 345.5%

5.1%
⬆ 121.8%

1,728
⬆ 20

LinkedIn 8
⬆ 5

3,305
⬆ 129.8%

280
⬆ 120.5%

8.5%
⬇ 4.1%

1,609
⬆ 32

Tik Tok 3
⬆ 2

NA 51 NA 32
⬆ 11

Comparison is made to Jan. 2023 stats

Social Media drove 825 people to our website in February, in comparison to 239 in January!

*Our goal this year is to increase engagement by 10-20% each quarter. Our total engagements for January and 
February are 187,133.

139



AUR Active Membership Count: 22.12.01TZ
As of 2023-03-05 15:28:57 Mountain Standard Time/MST • Generated by Kimberly Armitage

Filtered By
Show: All memberships
Membership Status equals Active
Record Type equals Standard Membership
MT: Location contains aur
Membership Type: Membership Report Filter equals Aurora YMCA,Blackstone

MT: Location  ↑ Membership Type: Membership Type Name  ↑ Unique Count of Unique Membership Record Count
Aurora YMCA (AUR) Blackstone Resident Couple (AUR) 5 10

Blackstone Resident Household (AUR) 13 51
Blackstone Resident Premium Individual (AUR) 4 4
Blackstone Resident Y-Starter (AUR) 8 8
Household Pre-pay Annual (Grandfathered) (AUR) 3 13
Y-Premium Annual Couple (AUR) 17 34
Y-Premium Annual Household (AUR) 34 142
Y-Premium Annual Individual (AUR) 8 8
Y-Premium Couple (AUR) 164 323
Y-Premium Household (AUR) 386 1615
Y-Premium Individual (AUR) 138 138
Y-Starter (AUR) 292 292
Y-Starter Annual (AUR)  - (DO NOT SELL) 5 5
Y Your Way (AUR) 28 119

Subtotal 1104 2762
Total 1104 2762

Confidential Information - Do Not Distribute
Copyright © 2000-2023 salesforce.com, inc. All rights reserved.

140


	2023-03-09 Regular Meeting Agenda
	5A. Minutes
	5B. Courtesy Plumbing and Heating - ICA
	5C. YMCA - First Amendment to ICA for District Management and Clubhouse
	5D. YMCA - First Amendment to ICA for Pool Maintenance & Staffing
	5E. Apex Plumbing, LLC - First Amendment to ICA
	5F. Saquiux Services, LCC - ICA
	5G. LEO Renovations LLC - First Amendment to ICA
	5H. Pay App 10
	6A. Covenant Enforcement Reports Meeting Executive Summary 3.2023
	6A. HOA - Operations Summary 3.2023
	7A part 2. AP List
	7A. Financials
	8A. WMD FEBRUARY 2023 Monthly Status Report
	10A. 2023 March Board Meeting Agenda
	Urban Soccer Fields Update
	2023_Feb Overview Ad Campaign
	AUR Active Membership Count  22.12.01TZ-2023-03-05-15-28-57



